Message

From: Card, Lorine - Virtual US [Lorine.Card@mosaicco.com]

Sent: 10/17/2017 11:16:39 PM

To: Lovell, Will (William) [/o=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=3b150bb6ade640f68d744fadcb83a73e-Lovell, Wil]

CC: Kime, Robin [fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=7ef7b76087a6475b80fc984ac2dd4497-RKime]

Subject: 2017-05-10 EPA Reg Reform - Mosaic.pdf - Sent from MaaS360

Attachments: 2017-05-10 EPA Reg Reform - Mosaic.pdf; ATTO0001.htm

Flag: Follow up
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Deedra Allen, P.E., J.D. D: (813) 500-6914

Director, Regulatory Affairs C: (863) 860-1038
E-mail:
Mosaic Fertilizer, LLC Deedra Allen@mosaicco.com

13830 Circa Crossing Drive
Lithia, FL 33547
www.mosaicco.com

May 10, 2017

Submitted via www reodlations.goy

Ms. Sarah Reese

Office of Regulatory Policy and Management
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

1200 Pennsylvania Ave., NW

Washington, DC 20460

RE: Comments on EPA’s “Evaluation of Existing Regulations”
Docket #: EPA-HQ-0OA-2017-0190

Dear Ms. Reese:

Mosaic Fertilizer, LLC (Mosaic) appreciates the opportunity to submit the following comments regarding
“Evaluation of Existing Regulations.” This Request for Information was published in the Federal Register
on April 13, 2017 at 82 FR 17793. In that notice, comments were requested to be posted to the
regulations.gov website by May 15, 2017.

This letter focuses on items of high priority. For more comprehensive comments, please review the
comment letter submitted to this docket by The Fertilizer Institute {TFI).

Scope of U5, Phosphate Qperations

Mosaic is one of the world’s largest producers of manufactured phosphate products with 15% of the
world phosphate production. For more than a century, Florida’s phosphate industry has been a major
economic driver in central Florida. We currently own or control more than 350,000 acres of land and
have approximately 3,600 employees in central Florida (with an additional 2,200 contractors working at
our Florida sites). We also own two fertilizer manufacturing plants in Louisiana with approximately 400
employees. *

According to a 2015 study released by Port Tampa Bay, phosphate accounts for nearly 71 percent of the
Port’s $17.2 billion annual economic activity. In addition, the phosphate industry supports more than
half of the Port’s 85,000 direct, indirect and related jobs.

We are proud to be a competitive producer with strong customer relationships, and have the financial
strength to invest in growth and innovation. We've led the industry in developing high-quality premium
products that help farmers succeed, while demonstrating our shared commitment to good corporate
citizenship in all of our operating communities. Our products nourish about 70% of the nation’s crops,
helping to maintain a stable and reliable food supply.

*  As of March 2017, Mosaic Fertilizer LLC and its parent, The Mosaic Company have a total of

4,655 employees in the U.S., including 414 employees at the Carisbad, NM potash mine and the
corporate office in Plymouth, MN.
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Comments

The following information regarding repeal, replacement or modification of regulations is being
submitted in your suggested format.

1. CERCLA 108(b) ~ Proposed Regulation
a. Regulslion: 40 CFR Part 320; Published in the Federal Register 82 FR 12333;
Docket #: EPA-HQ-SFUND-2015-0781-2379
b. Potential impact:
Annual cost: >5500,000/ year for additional {duplicative) financial assurance
¢. Becommendation: Remove phosphate and potash mining from the definition of Hard Rock
Mining or cancel the proposed rulemaking altogether.
d. Summary of Concern:

The proposed CERCLA rule with respect to phosphate and potash mining is unnecessary and duplicative,
as confirmed in a review by the Small Business Administration and Small Business Regulatory
Enforcement Fairness Act panel {SBRFA). Phosphate and potash mining operations present very low risk
with respect to hazardous material use and risk of releases, and do not employ practices used by Hard
Rock Mining (HRM) enterprises (i.e., gold or copper}. During the development of the proposed CERCLA
108(b) rule, 59 mined commodities—as matter of policy—were excluded due to low risk. Phosphate
mining is similar to excluded commaodities and is unlike HRM in material respects. For example, in
Florida both phosphate mining and aggregate mining (an excluded commaodity} involve shallow pits (<
100 ft) of unconsolidated materials and use only physical separation processes in beneficiation (no
chemical reaction or leachate). There are no phosphate mines on the CERCLIS list.

With respect to potash, potash is a salt. Salt mining is among the 59 mining commodities excluded from
the scope of the CERCLA rule as being low risk, and potash mining employs the same processes as salt
production. Because it is a salt, potash should be categorized as a salt, and thus exempt.

While phosphate mining presents low risk from its use of hazardous materials, Mosaic has a financial
responsibility to complete reclamation-—to return mined land to beneficial use. To guarantee this, bonds
are the mechanism typically used to provide the assurance of adequate funding. For example, one
Maosaic Florida mine posts bonds in the amount of about $40 million, based on actual costs, to assure
reclamation is completed. The costs and bonds are verified and updated annually. To compare this to
the liability generated in the CERCLA 108({b} formula—an almost impossible exercise because the HRM
assumptions and processes don’t correlate to phosphate mining—the CERCLA formula yields a financial
assurance requirement in the amount of about $400 million for the same mine — an order of magnitude
greater. Maintaining bonds on all Mosaic phosphate mining operations at this level would increase
Mosaic’s costs by well over $500,000 per year, provided the marketplace has such capacity, and would
underwrite a risk that is wholly unsupported.

This proposed rule also includes fertilizer manufacturing in the HRM category. Fertilizer manufacturing
is akin to chemical manufacturing, not HRM. Chemical manufacturing is a separate category which may
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be subject to future rulemaking. The main environmental risks associated with Mosaic’s fertilizer
manufacturing operations have already been evaluated and addressed under RCRA settlement
agreements. EPA has deemed the bulk of wastes from those operations to be “high volume/ low
toxicity” and subject to RCRA’s Bevill exemption. Notably, those settlements required Mosaic to place
$630 million into trust to backstop the company’s commitment to close and care for phosphogypsum
stack systems, which store a by-product generated during our fertilizer production process.

2. Clean Water Act Section (404) — Existing Regulation
a. Repulation: 40 CFR Part 230; {and companion ACOE regulations 33 CFR 320) , including the
2008 Mitigation Rule
b. Potential impact:
Due to the 6 to 8 year time frame experienced for issuance of a large 404 permit,
mine plans may have to be changed and adjusted to maintain, to the extent possible,
production while awaiting permit issuance. The unpredictability of the permitting
process results in tremendous uncertainty in production planning, adds significant
costs to both production and permitting, and may unjustifiably delay a project for
years.
c. Annualcost: Several million dollars/ year in inefficiencies typically occur for permit
processing times in excess of 6 years.
d. Recommendation: Add streamlining/ time efficiency provisions, clarify the meaning of
various concepts, and reduce the complexity of delegation of the program to the states.
e. Summary of Concerns: Issues with the 404 Permit Program include:

= Lack of fixed time frames for agency reviews — This allows the permit process to drag out for
years, with no urgency on the part of agency staff to finalize. Issues may be reviewed and
revisited several times during this process whether by a single reviewer, or when agency staff
turnover occurs. It is recommended this process be amended to mirror regulations such as
those in the State of Florida, 62-330 Florida Administrative Code. For example, upon application
submittal, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection {FDEP) has 30 days to review
and submit a formal Request for Additional information (RAl). The applicant then has 90 days to
respond. Either party may request a time extension if more time is needed for complex review
or response. Upon receipt of the additional information response, the process repeats. This
process allows state permit applications, with essentially the same review criteria, to be
processed in about half the time it takes to process a federal 404 application.

#  Uncertainty due to EPA permit veto authority — Mine development reguires the commitment of
significant resources. EPA’s authority to veto a permit after issuance puts that investment at
risk. It is recommended that the rule be changed to provide certainty that a final, effective
permit is, in fact final, subject to customary re-openers.
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o QOverlap between the Army Corps of Engineers and EPA and program delegation — The 404
process is complicated by the need to interact with multiple federal agencies that may not have
the same objectives. Delegation of the 404 process to the State of Florida would significantly
streamline the permitting process. Care, however, should be taken not to overly complicate the
state assumption process. For example, an overbroad scope of waters remaining subject to
federal authority under Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act may make assumption
impractical. Delays could also ensue without a clear definition of the boundary between federal
and state jurisdictional waters. A process that is too subjective, becomes vulnerable to
challenges and delays.

*  Waters of the 1.5, — Mosaic supports revising the Waters of the U.S. rule using Scalia’s standard
defining the extent of federal jurisdiction through “relatively permanent waters.” This will
remove much of the subjectivity from federal wetland delineations, improving efficiency, and
heing closer to the original focus of the regulation on navigable waters.

e Beyond that, the permitting process is manifest with confusing, seemingly arbitrary
interpretations. Here are examples we have encountered with the EPA and ACOE under the
2008 Mitigation Rule.

o Example 1: Compensatory Mitigation Sustainability

Ex. 1: 33 CFR 332.7(b)} states - Sustainability. Compensatory mitigation projects shall be designed,
to the maximum extent practicable, to be self-sustaining once performance standards have been
achieved. This includes minimization of active engineering features (e.g., pumps) and appropriate
siting to ensure that natural hydrology and landscape context will support long-term sustainability.
Where active long-term management and maintenance are necessary to ensure long-term
sustainability (e.g., prescribed burning, invasive species control, maintenance of water control
structures, easement enforcement), the responsible party must provide for such management and
maintenance. This includes the provision of long-term financing mechanisms where necessary.

Summary of the Issue (Compensatory Mitigation Sustainability): This provision has been interpreted to
require funding into perpetuity, even for systems without active engineering features. Natural systems
are considered self-sustaining and once performance standards have been achieved for permittee
responsible mitigation {with no engineering features}, these systems are also self-sustaining. Natural,
undisturbed wetlands evolve, e.g., in vegetation composition, over time due changes in natural
conditions. The ACOE’s interpretation of its rule in this manner—not mandated by the rule or underlying
statute—seeks to prevent such natural evolution in favor of mandating intervention to maintain an
unnatural static system. Even so, the codified Conservation Easement itself {i.e., 33 CFR 332.4(c){4) Site
Protection Instrument) provides assurance of perpetual protection in natural condition, regardless of
current and future owners of the property, through the agency’s right to enforce baseline conditions.
Therefore, the interpretation of this provision that a perpetual funding arrangement is required, is both
unreasonable in interpretation, and also adds unreasonable time and expense to permit processing and
fong term project costs.
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o Example 2: Grazing and Long Term Management

Ex. 2: 33 CFR 332.7(2)(2) states - The mechanism providing long-term protection of the
compensatory mitigation site {i.e., management plan or real property instrument) must, to the
extent appropriate and practicable, prohibit incompatible uses (e.g., clear cutting or mineral
extraction} that might otherwise jeopardize the objectives of the compensatory mitigation project.
Where appropriate, multiple instruments recognizing compatible uses {e.g., fishing or grazing rights)
may be used.

Summary of the Issue (Grazing and Long Term Management): The ACOE/ EPA recently interpreted this
provision as a prohibition against grazing. Grazing, however, particularly in accordance with best
management practices {BMPs) has an important and beneficial role in ensuring wetland mitigation sites
remain sustainable, with grazing fulfilling an important ecological maintenance function on many state
of Florida conservation lands (See also Fla. DACS Publication P-01280, Best Management Practices for
Florida Cow/ Calf Operations, 2008). Grazing can also create economic activity on large expanses of land
that reduces management needs, as well as creates a funding source for other management—such as
fencing and clean-up of unauthorized trash dumping. Grazing is compatible with the easement because
it helps control invasive plants and maintains lower height of ground cover plants, desirable for a
number of species of protected wildlife. Without grazing, more intense chemical treatment {(herbicide)
may be required which adds chemicals to the soil column.

The beneficial use of grazing has also been recognized by the U.S. Department of Agriculture {USDA) in
its Wetland Reserve Program, where the USDA worked with ranchers to protect, restore and enhance
private property wetlands. Regardless of how one comes down on the ultimate policy question of
grazing or no grazing, it is so fundamental to rural property use that a decision to prohibit grazing should
either be done at the congressional level or—at a minimum-—through specific rulemaking. Thus, in
accordance with the provision above, grazing should be considered consistent with the plain language of
the rule, and particularly compatible with large rural compensatory mitigation sites (over 1,000 acres)
that have been grazed for generations yet are still in excellent condition.

3. EPA -~ RMP Rule - Existing Regulation
a. Regulation: 40 CFR Part 68; Comment Period open until 05/19/2017 in re: Extending

Effective Date to 02/18/2019

Docket #: EPA-HQ-OEM-2015-0725-0760

Potential Impact; This rule increases the administrative burden on operating companies and

local first responders without a corresponding or measurable increase in safety or benefit.
Creates extra expense through recordkeeping and production, rapid turnaround times and
potential security risks with respect to record production, hiring of 3™ party auditors with no
direct facility knowledge to lead incident audits/ investigations, and mandated five (5} year
Safer Technology and Alternative Analysis (STAA) reviews.

¢.  Annual Cost: Annual costs reflect the addition of administrative recordkeeping time at an
estimated cost of about $60,000/year per facility.
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d. Recommendation: Repeal the rule as unfounded with respect to significant increases to
operator costs without correlating benefits.
e. Summary of Concerns:

These regulations require public release of sensitive materials related to potential facility
vulnerabilities which can increase, not decrease, risk by mandating a facility to provide any
information deemed relevant by local emergency planners, with no exemptions or protection of
confidential business or security related information. This increases the potential that such
information may be used for an unlawful purpose, posing risks to the facility and host community.
The rule also expands the incident auditing process, requires the process to be led by a 3" party
auditor with no direct knowledge of the facility. It requires a “Safer Technology and Alternatives
Analysis” (STAA} to be performed every five {5) years and even if findings support the use of current
equipment as the best economically feasible technology, General Duty Liability can be enhanced if
an incident occurs.

In addition there is duplication and overlap of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration’s
{OSHA) Process Safety Management {(PSM) program and the EPA’s Risk Management Program
(RMP). These programs have separate recordkeeping and reporting obligations and separate teams
of federal agency officials involved in administration and enforcement. These programs should be
consolidated into one to improve efficiency.

4, Matters Pending from Previous Administration
a. EPA Conductivity Guidance
i. Regulations: Draft guidance document entitled: “Field-Based Methods for
Developing Aquatic Life Criteria for Specific Conductivity”, released on December 23,
2016, 81 FR 94370; Docket Number: EPA-HQ-OW-2016-0353
Potential Impact; Technical flaws in this guidance would result in more complex
stream standards without a corresponding environmental benefit to the protection
of sensitive aguatic life.
ifi. Comment Letters: See Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP)
Comment letter EPA-HQ-OW-2016-0353-0044 and Cardno Comment Letter
regarding Florida environmental concerns EPA-HQ-OW-2016-0353-0038
iv. Recommendation: Withdraw the draft Conductivity Guidance
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b. NPDES Permit Update

i. Regulations: Proposed regulation entitled: “National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES): Applications and Program Updates” released on May
18, 2016, 81 FR 31344; Docket Number EPA-HQ-OW-2016-0145

ii. Potential lmpact: Revising 40 CFR 123.44(k) to allow EPA broad discretion to
intervene in certain “Administratively Continued Permits” by reclassifying them as
“Proposed Permits” would result in more process and delay, without corresponding
benefits to water resources. Because in Florida, there is an interrelationship
between NPDES permits and solid waste management approvals, if EPA were to
usurp the state’'s NPDES permitting authority, it would result in increased
administrative burden to the applicant to obtain a separate solid waste
management approval. Further, this expansion of EPA authority is contrary to its
own expressed opinion (See EPA’s Response to Petition for Mandamus, in re Sierra
Club, Case No 12-1860 (1% Cir. March 14, 2013, pg 10-12)), where EPA claimed that
due to permit complexities and the need in some cases for detailed analyses, states
are in the best position to set priorities and allocate resources.

iii. Comment Letters: See FDEP Comment letter EPA-HQ-OW-2016-0145-0111 and The
Fertilizer Institute (TFl) Comment Letter EPA-HQ-OW-2016-0145-0167

iv. Recommendstion; Withdraw the proposed NPDES Permit Update Rule

We appreciate the opportunity to provide this information. Please let me know if we can provide further
assistance. My contact information is provided above.

Sincerely,
’IQ"-&Q’;WK ﬁ? MQILM

Deedra M. Allen, P.E,, 1.D.
Director — Regulatory Affairs
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Message

From: Card, Lorine - Virtual US [Lorine.Card@mosaicco.com]

Sent: 10/17/2017 11:15:14 PM

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

Subject: Re: Meeting w/EPA, 10/24

Flag: Follow up

Absolutely. It will be me as well as my colleague Eileen Stuart who will be coming up from our Tallahassee, FL office. |
was going to put together some folders that include information about the company and our footprint. Can | bring them
to you tomorrow? (How many?). We plan on discussing our business in the US and how critical it is for agriculture and
food security; global competition, and the process to obtain permits (local, state and federal) in order to mine in FL. We
submitted comments to the EPA on regulatory Reform that | will also send to you electronically.

Who on your end will be in attendance? We are both a mining and (chemical) manufacturing company.
Thank you.

Lorine

Lorine D. Card |Federal Government Affairs

The Mosaic Company | 300 M Street 5F | Suite 402 | Washington, DC 20003
Pi Ex. 6 M Ex. 6 il E:lorine card®mosaicco.com | www mosaicco, com

On Oct 17, 2017, at 6:42 PM, Lovell, Will (William) <lovell. william @ epa.gov> wrote:

CAUTION: External Email.

Good evening, Lorine,

I am gathering information ahead of your group’s meeting with EPA next week. Would you mind
providing a list of attendees from your group as well as any read-ahead materials you can provide us?

Thanks,

Will Lovell

Policy Assistant, Office of Policy

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(202) 564-5713

Lovell, William({@epa gov
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Message

From: Schneider, Jonathan [jonathan.schneider@stinson.com}
Sent: 10/18/2017 11:33:09 AM
To: ‘andrew.mckeon@rggi.org' [andrew.mckeon@rggi.orgl; 'PCBailey @ Ex. 6 E‘Chupka, Marc'

[Marc.Chupka@hbrattle.com]; ‘blongstreth@nrdc.org' [blongstreth@nrdc.org]; Fotouhi, David
[/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=febaf0d56aab43f8a9174b18218c1182-Fotouhi, Da]

CC: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com’ [stuart.caplan@troutman.com]; 'dlyster@velaw.com' [dlyster@velaw.com];
“tmiller@willkie.com' [tmiller@willkie.com]; 'Norman Pedersen' [npedersen@hanmor.com]; 'Lisa Levine'
[LLevine@eba-net.org]; Veney, Carla [fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=c354b58bf2b1464d8afac7bbd2a7a88c-CVeney]; Lovell, Will (William)
[fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=3b150bb6ade640f68d744fadch83a73e-Lovell, Wil; Irving, Verna
[fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9e9c4a3b2b4b46df88c24bf66chbafec-Virving]; Kime, Robin
[/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=7ef7b76087a6475b80fc984ac2dd4497-RKime]

Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Gentlemen;

While | think & more formal thank you will be forthcoming from the Energy Bar Association, | wanted to thank you
personally for your terrific contributions to yesterday's panel discussion at the Mid-Year meeting. It was an engaging,
high level, civil discussion, something | think we'd probably all agree we should have more of.

will look forward to seeing you all in other settings,

Best,

Jon

Jonathan D. Schneider | Partner | Stinson Leonard Street LLP
1775 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Suite 800 | Washington, DC 20006-4605

T 7TEx 61 MiTTTTECE T F 202.572.9967
jonathan.schneider@stinson.com | www.stinson.com
Legal Administrative Assistant: Yvette Trammell (i Ex. 6 | yvette.trammell@stinson.com

This communication (including any attachments) is from a law firm and may contain confidential and/or privileged
information. If it has been sent to you in error, please contact the sender for instructions concerning return or
destruction, and do not use or disclose the contents to others.
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Message

From: Lisa Levine [LLevine@eba-net.org]

Sent: 10/11/2017 6:48:38 PM

To: Longstreth, Ben [blongstreth@nrdc.org]; Schneider, Jonathan [jonathan.schneider@stinson.com];
‘andrew.mckeon@rggi.org' [andrew.mckeon@rggi.org]; 'PCBailey@¢ Ex. 6 , ‘Chupka, Marc'

[Marc.Chupka@brattle.com]; Fotouhi, David [fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=febaf0d56aab43f8a9174b18218¢c1182-Fotouhi, Da]; Veney, Carla
[/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=c354b58bf2b1464d8afac7bbd2a7a88¢c-CVeney]; Lovell, Will (William)
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

Thank you. This is great.

From: Longstreth, Ben [mailto:blongstreth@nrdc.org]

Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 1:03 PM

To: Schneider, Jonathan <jonathan.schneider@stinson.com>; ‘andrew.mckeon@rggi.org' <andrew.mckeon@rggi.org>;
Lisa Levine <LLevine@eba-net.org>; 'PCBailey Ex. 6 i 'Chupka, Marc'
<Marc.Chupka@brattle.com>; ‘Fotouhi, David' <Fotouhi.David@epa.gov>; 'Veney, Carla' <Veney.Carla@epa.gov>;
‘Lovell, Will (William)' <lovell.william@epa.gov>; 'Irving, Verna' <lrving.Verna@epa.gov>; 'Kime, Robin'
<Kime.Robin@epa.gov>

Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Hi all, | attach the EPA proposed repeal of the Clean Power Plan, downloaded from EPA’s website
(https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2017-10/documents/frn_cpp repeal 2060-
ats5 proposal 20171010disclaimer.pdf ) for inclusion in the materials for this panel.

Best regards,

Ben Longstreth

From: Schneider, Jonathan [mailto:jonathan.schneider@stinson.com]

Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 11:08 AM

To: 'andrew.mckeon@rggi.org' <andrew.mckeon@rggi.org>; 'PCBailey@cox.net' <PCBailey@<¢__Ex.6 _ 'Chupka, Marc'
<Marc.Chupka@brattle.com>; Longstreth, Ben <blongstreth@nrdc.org>; 'Fotouhi, David' <Fotouhi.David@epa.gov>;
Veney, Carla' <Veney.Carla@epa.gov>; 'Lovell, Will (William)' <lovellL.william@epa.gov>; 'lIrving, Verna'
<frving.Verna@epa.gov>; 'Kime, Robin' <Kime.Robin@epa.gov>

Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com’ <stuart.caplan@troutman.com>; 'dlyster@velaw.com’ <dlyster@velaw.com>;
‘tmiller@willkie.com' <tmiller@willkie.com>; 'Norman Pedersen’ <npedersen@hanmor.com>; 'Lisa Levine'
<LLevine@ebha-net.org>

Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

From: Schneider, Jonathan
Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 10:44 AM

Carla'; 'Lovell, Will (William)'; 'Irving, Verna'; 'Kime, Robin'
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Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com'; 'dlyster@velaw.com’; 'tmiller@willkie.com'; 'Norman Pedersen’; 'Lisa Levine'
Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Hi folks — In order to give vou a chance to react, | was thinking of this order for the speakers :

« D Foutouhi

¢ P Baily

s B, Longstreth
s A MoKeon

o M. Chupka

And, as | mentioned earlier, we will invite you {no obligation} to speak to the DOE NOPR,
Thanks!

Jon

From: Schneider, Jonathan
Sent Wednesday, October 11, 2017 9 51 AM

Cc: stuart caplan@troutman com’; 'dIyster@velaw com' ’tmiller@willkie.com‘; 'Norman Pedersen’; 'Lisa Levine'
Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Hi folks — lust 3 reminder about today's call at 11:00, ET.  Please also remember to forward as soon as you can any
handouts to Exec. Dir, Lisa Levine, copied here. Lisa.levine@eba-net.org.

Thanks!

lon

From: Schneider, Jonathan

Sent: Friday, October 06, 2017 2:42 PM

To: andrew.mckeon@ragi.org; PCBailey@ "Ex.eé ~Chupka, Marc; blongstreth@nrdc.org; Fotouhi, David; Veney, Carla;
Lovell, Will (William); Irving, Verna; Kime, Robin

Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com'; divster@velaw.com; tmiller@willkie.com; Norman Pedersen; Lisa Levine

Subject: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

When: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 11:00 AM-11:30 AM (UTC -05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).

Where: Dial-in Number:i""""Exe_ "3 Code:{  Ex.6
Dial-in Number: EX. 6
Conference Code: ! Ex. 6

From: Schneider, Jonathan
Sent Friday, October 06, 2017 2:39 PM
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Carla’; 'Lovell, Will (William)'; 'Irving, Verna'; 'Kime, Robin'
Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com’; 'dlyster@velaw.com’; 'tmiller@willkie.com'; 'Norman Pedersen’; 'Lisa Levine'
Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Hi folks — it looks as though next Wednesday, 10711, at 11:00 will work for most of us. | can catch up with others as
needaed. 'l send a meeting notice with a dial-in number in a few minutes,

Thanks!
lon

From: Schneider, Jonathan

Carla; Lovell, Will (William); Irving, Verna; 'Kime, Robin'
Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com’; 'dlyster@velaw.com'; tmiller@willkie.com; Norman Pedersen; Lisa Levine
Subject: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Dear EBA Panelists:

Thanks so much for agreeing to speak at the Energy Bar Assoc. (EBA) conference on October 17 (A New Sheriff in
Town). EBAis really very grateful for your time. We have a great panel, and it's perfectly timed.

We'd like to set up a quick organizational call within the next several days. Though you should have all of the logistical
information you need from EBA Executive Director Lisa Levine, it would be good to have a chance to discuss the format
for the panel and exchange a few thoughts on the scope of the discussion. I'd like to impose on each of you to spend
perhaps a minute or two on the call outlining your thoughts. One late-breaking topic | would invite you to address is
DOE's baseload generation NOPR (FERC Docket No. RM18-1). Though it is not an environmental regulation, strictly
speaking, it does impact the same set or resources of concern to the EBA membership, and it would have an
environmental impact.

At the link below, you'll find a doodle poll asking for your availability for a call over the next few days. | hope we can
limit the call to ¥ hour.

Poll: https://doodle.com/poll/v23482mp9xvsn995s

Thanks again!

Jon

Jonathan D. Schneider | Partner | Stinson Leonard Street LLP
1775 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Suite 800 | Washington, DC 20006-4605

TR T M DT Exe T F: 202.572.9967
jonathan.schneider@stinson.com | www.stinson.com
Legal Administrative Assistant: Yvette Trammell : I Ex.e____ I yvette.frammell@stinson.com

This communication {including any attachments) is from a law firm and may contain confidential and/or privileged
information. If it has been sent to you in error, please contact the sender for instructions concerning return or
destruction, and do not use or disclose the contents to others.
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Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 1 ED_002061_00122207-00004



Message

From: Longstreth, Ben [blongstreth@nrdc.org]

Sent: 10/11/2017 5:03:10 PM

To: Schneider, Jonathan [jonathan.schneider@stinson.com]; 'andrew.mckeon@rggi.org' [andrew.mckeon@rggi.org];
‘Lisa Levine' [LLevine@eba-net.org]; 'PCBailey(@ EX. 6 i]; 'Chupka, Marc'

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

Attachments: Pruitt Proposed Repeal frn_cpp_repeal 2060-at55 proposal _20171010disclaimer.pdf

Hi all, I attach the EPA proposed repeal of the Clean Power Plan, downloaded from EPA’s website
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

To: 'andrew.mckeon®@rggi.org’' <andrew.mckeon@rggi.org>; 'PCBailey@¢ Ex. 6 i'Chupka, Marc'
<Marc.Chupka@brattle.com>; Longstreth, Ben <blongstreth@nrdc.org>; ;Fotouhi, David' <Fotouhi.Da\}id@epa.gov>;
'Veney, Carla’ <Veney.Carla@epa.gov>; 'Lovell, Will (William)' <lovell.william@epa.gov>; 'Irving, Verna'
<lrving.Verna@epa.gov>; 'Kime, Robin' <Kime.Robin@epa.gov>

Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com’ <stuart.caplan@troutman.com>; 'dlyster @velaw.com' <dlyster@velaw.com>;
‘tmiller@willkie.com' <tmiller@willkie.com>; 'Norman Pedersen' <npedersen@hanmor.com>; 'Lisa Levine'
<lLlLevine@eba-net.org>

Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

From: Schneider, Jonathan
Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 10:44 AM

To: 'andrew.mckeon@rggi.org'; 'PCBailey@ "Ex. s _i'Chupka, Marc'; 'blongstreth@nrdc.org'; 'Fotouhi, David'; 'Veney,
Carla'; 'Lovell, Will (William)'; 'Irving, Verna'; 'Kime, Robin’
Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com’; 'dlyster@velaw.com’; '‘tmiller@willkie.com'; 'Norman Pedersen’; 'Lisa Levine'

Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Hi folks — In order to give you a chance to react, | was thinking of this order for the speakers :

« D Foutouhi
¢ P Baily

B. Longstreth
A, Mckeon

&

&
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o M. Chupka

And, as | mentioned earlier, we will invite you {no obligation} to speak to the DOE NOPR,
Thanks!

Jon

From: Schneider, Jonathan
Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 9:51 AM

To: 'andrew.mckeon@rggi.org'; 'PCBailey@ Ex. 6 |'Chupka, Marc'; 'blongstreth@nrdc.org’; 'Fotouhi, David'; 'Veney,
Carla'; 'Lovell, Will (William)'; 'Irving, Verna'; 'Kime, Robin'
Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com’; 'dlyster@velaw.com'; 'tmiller@willkie.com’; 'Norman Pedersen’; 'Lisa Levine'

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

To: andrew.mckeon@rggi.org; PCBailey@i Ex.e__:Chupka, Marc; blongstreth@nrdc.org; Fotouhi, David; Veney, Carla;
Lovell, Will (William); Irving, Verna; Kime, Robin

Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com’; diyster@velaw.com; tmiller@willkie.com; Norman Pedersen; Lisa Levine
Subject Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17 9:00 - 10: 30

Where Dial-in Number: | Ex6 ________ Code Ex. 6
Dial-in Number: ! Ex. 6
Conference Code: | Ex. 6

From: Schneider, Jonathan
Sent: Friday, October 06, 2017 2:39PM
To: 'andrew.mckeon@rggi.org'; 'PCBailey@__Ex. 6 _: 'Chupka, Marc'; 'blongstreth@nrdc.org'; 'Fotouhi, David'; 'Veney,

Carla'; 'Lovell, Will (William)'; 'Irving, Verna'; 'Kime, Robin'
Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com’; 'dlyster@velaw.com’; 'tmiller@willkie.com'; 'Norman Pedersen’; 'Lisa Levine'
Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Hi folks ~ it looks as though next Wednesday, 10711, at 1100 will work for most of us. | can catch up with others as
neaded. 'l send a meesting notice with a dial-in number in a few minutes.

Thanks!

Jon
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From: Schneider, Jonathan
Sent: Thursday, October 05, 2017 5:20 PM

Carla; Lovell, Will (William); Irving, Verna; 'Kime, Robin’
Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com’; 'dlyster@velaw.com’; tmiller@willkie.com; Norman Pedersen; Lisa Levine
Subject: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Dear EBA Panelists:

Thanks so much for agreeing to speak at the Energy Bar Assoc. (EBA) conference on October 17 (A New Sheriff in
Town). EBA s really very grateful for your time. We have a great panel, and it's perfectly timed.

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

Poll: https://doodle.com/poll/v23482mp9xvsn985

Thanks again!

Jjon

Jonathan D. Schneider | Partner | Stinson Leonard Street LLP

T Ex.6 I M:ITEETTIF202.572.9967
jonathan.schneider@stinson.com | www.stinson.com
Legal Administrative Assistant: Yvette Trammell """"" Ex. 6 , ! yvette.trammell@stinson.com

This communication (including any attachments) is from a law firm and may contain confidential and/or privileged
information. If it has been sent to you in error, please contact the sender for instructions concerning return or
destruction, and do not use or disclose the contents to others.
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The EPA Administrator, E. Scott Pruitt, signed the following notice on 10/10/2017, and EPA is submitting it for
publication in the Federal Register (FR). While we have taken steps to ensure the accuracy of this Internet version
of the rule, it is not the official version of the rule for purposes of compliance. Please refer to the official version in
a forthcoming FR publication, which will appear on the Government Printing Office's FDSys website

(i epopov/idays/seareh/home.action) and on Regulations.gov (hiip:/ fwww . regulations.goyv) in Docket No.
EPA-HQ-0AR-2017-0355. Once the official version of this document is published in the FR, this version will be
removed from the Internet and replaced with a link to the official version.

6560-50-P
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

40 CFR Part 60
[EPA-HQ-OAR-2017-0355: FRL-XXXX-XX-XXX]
RIN 2060-ATS5

Repeal of Carbon Pollution Emission Guidelines for Existing Stationary Sources: Electric
Utility Generating Units

AGENCY: Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).
ACTION: Proposed Rule.

SUMMARY: In this action, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) is proposing to
repeal the Carbon Pollution Emission Guidelines for Existing Stationary Sources: Electric Utility
Generating Units (EGUs), commonly referred to as the Clean Power Plan (CPP), as promulgated
on October 23, 2015.

DATES: Comments. Comments must be received on or before [INSERT DATE 60 DAYS
AFTER DATE OF PUBLICATION IN THE FEDERAL REGISTER].

Public Hearing. If anyone contacts us requesting a public hearing on or before [INSERT
DATE 15 DAYS FROM DATE OF PUBLICATION IN THE FEDERAL REGISTER], we
will hold a hearing. Additional information about the hearing, if requested, will be published in a
subsequent Federal Register document.

ADDRESSES: Comments. Submit your comments, identified by Docket ID No. EPA-HQ-OAR-

2017-0355, at http://www.regulations.gov. Follow the online instructions for submitting

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 1 ED_002061_00122209-00001



Page 2 of 47

comments. Once submitted, comments cannot be edited or removed from Regulations.gov. The
EPA may publish any comment received to its public docket. Do not submit electronically any
information you consider to be Confidential Business Information (CBI) or other information
whose disclosure is restricted by statute. Multimedia submissions (audio, video, etc.) must be
accompanied by a written comment. The written comment 1s considered the official comment
and should include discussion of all points you wish to make. The EPA will generally not
consider comments or comment contents located outside of the primary submission (i.e., on the
Web, cloud, or other file sharing system). For additional submission methods, the full EPA
public comment policy, information about CBI or multimedia submissions, and general guidance
on making effective comments, please visit Atps://www.epa.gov/dockets/commenting-epa-
dockets.

Instructions. Direct your comments on the proposed rule to Docket ID No. EPA-HQ-
OAR-2017-0355. The EPA’s policy is that all comments received will be included in the public
docket and may be made available online at htip.//www.regulations.gov, including any personal
information provided, unless the comment includes information claimed to be CBI or other
information whose disclosure is restricted by statute. Do not submit information that you
consider to be CBI or otherwise protected through Attp.//www.regulations.gov or email. The
hitp://www.regulations.gov Web site is an “anonymous access” system, which means the EPA
will not know your identity or contact information unless you provide it in the body of your
comment. If you send an email comment directly to the EPA without going through
hitp:/www.regulations.gov, your email address will be automatically captured and included as
part of the comment that is placed in the public docket and made available on the Internet. If you

submit an electronic comment, the EPA recommends that you include your name and other

This document is a prepublication version, signed by EPA Administrator, E. Scott Pruitt on 10/10/2017. We have
taken steps to ensure the accuracy of this version, but it is not the official version.
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contact information in the body of your comment and with any disk or CD-ROM you submit. If
the EPA cannot read your comment due to technical difficulties and cannot contact you for
clarification, the EPA may not be able to consider your comment. Electronic files should avoid
the use of special characters, any form of encryption, and be free of any defects or viruses.

Docket. The EPA has established a docket for this action under Docket ID No. EPA-HQ-
OAR-2017-0355. The EPA has previously established a docket for the October 23, 2015, CPP
under Docket ID No. EPA-HQ—OAR-2013-0602. All documents in the docket are listed in the
hitp:/'www.regulations.gov index. Although listed in the index, some information is not publicly
available, e.g., CBI or other information whose disclosure is restricted by statute. Certain other
material, such as copyrighted material, will be publicly available only in hard copy form.
Publicly available docket materials are available either electronically at
http://www.regulations.gov or in hard copy at the EPA Docket Center (EPA/DC), EPA WIC
West Building, Room 3334, 1301 Constitution Ave., NW, Washington, DC. The Public Reading
Room is open from 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. The
telephone number for the Public Reading Room is (202) 566—1744, and the telephone number
for the EPA Docket Center is (202) 566—1742.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Mr. Peter Tsirigotis, Sector Policies and Programs Division (D205-01), U.S.

Environmental Protection Agency, Research Triangle Park, NC 27711; telephone number: (888)
627-7764; email address: airaction@epa.gov.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Submitting CBI. Do not submit information that you consider to be CBI electronically

through http:/www.regulations.gov or email. Send or deliver information identified as CBI to

This document is a prepublication version, signed by EPA Administrator, E. Scott Pruitt on 10/10/2017. We have
taken steps to ensure the accuracy of this version, but it is not the official version.

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 1 ED_002061_00122209-00003



Page 4 of 47

only the following address: OAQPS Document Control Officer (Room C404-02), Environmental
Protection Agency, Research Triangle Park, North Carolina 27711; Attn: Docket ID No. EPA-
HQ-OAR-2017-0355.

Clearly mark the part or all of the information that you claim to be CBIL. For CBI
information in a disk or CD-ROM that you mail to the EPA, mark the outside of the disk or CD-
ROM as CBI and then identify electronically within the disk or CD-ROM the specific
information that is claimed as CBI. In addition to one complete version of the comment that
includes information claimed as CBI, a copy of the comment that does not contain the
information claimed as CBI must be submitted for inclusion in the public docket. If you submit a
CD-ROM or disk that does not contain CBI, mark the outside of the disk or CD-ROM clearly
that it does not contain CBI. Information marked as CBI will not be disclosed except in
accordance with procedures set forth in 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 2.

Acronyms and Abbreviations. A number of acronyms and abbreviations are used in this
preamble. While this may not be an exhaustive list, to ease the reading of this preamble and for

reference purposes, the following terms and acronyms are defined:

BACT Best available control technology

BDT Best demonstrated technology

BSER Best system of emission reduction

CAA Clean Air Act

CBI Confidential business information

CFR Code of Federal Regulations

CO2 Carbon dioxide

CPP Clean Power Plan

EGU Electric utility generating unit

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

GHGs Greenhouse gases

MACT Maximum achievable control technology

NESHAP National emission standards for hazardous air pollutants
NTTAA National Technology Transfer and Advancement Act
OMB Office of Management and Budget

This document is a prepublication version, signed by EPA Administrator, E. Scott Pruitt on 10/10/2017. We have
taken steps to ensure the accuracy of this version, but it is not the official version.
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PRA Paperwork Reduction Act
RFA Regulatory Flexibility Act
RIA Regulatory Impact Analysis

UMRA Unfunded Mandates Reform Act

Organization of This Document. The following outline is provided to aid in locating

information in this preamble.

PZOMEO AR EEOWE S

TOTMmO 0T

—

=

K.

V.

Executive Summary

Background

The CPP

Judicial Challenge to the CPP

Executive Order 13783 and the EPA’s Review of the CPP

. Basis for Proposed Repeal of the CPP

Statutory Text

Legislative History

Prior Agency Practice

Statutory Context

Broader Policy Concerns

Proposed Rescission of Legal Memorandum
Conclusion

. Statutory and Executive Order Reviews

Executive Order 12866: Regulatory Planning and Review and Executive Order 13563:
Improving Regulation and Regulatory Review

Executive Order 13771: Reducing Regulation and Controlling Regulatory Costs
Paperwork Reduction Act (PRA)

Regulatory Flexibility Act (RFA)

Unfunded Mandates Reform Act (UMRA)

Executive Order 13132: Federalism

Executive Order 13175: Consultation and Coordination with Indian Tribal Governments
Executive Order 13045: Protection of Children from Environmental Health Risks and Safety
Risks

Executive Order 13211: Actions Concerning Regulations That Significantly Affect Energy
Supply, Distribution, or Use

National Technology Transfer and Advancement Act (NTTAA)

Executive Order 12898: Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority
Populations and Low-Income Populations

Statutory Authority

I. Executive Summary

By this notice, the EPA is proposing to repeal the CPP. See 80 FR 64662 (October 23,

2015). In accordance with Executive Order 13783, 82 FR 16093 (March 31, 2017), the EPA has

This document is a prepublication version, signed by EPA Administrator, E. Scott Pruitt on 10/10/2017. We have
taken steps to ensure the accuracy of this version, but it is not the official version.

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 1 ED_002061_00122209-00005



Page 6 of 47

reviewed the CPP and is initiating this action based on the outcome of that review. Specifically,
the EPA proposes a change in the legal interpretation as applied to section 111(d) of the Clean
Air Act (CAA), on which the CPP was based, to an interpretation that the Agency proposes is
consistent with the CAA’s text, context, structure, purpose, and legislative history, as well as
with the Agency’s historical understanding and exercise of its statutory authority. Under the
interpretation proposed in this notice, the CPP exceeds the EPA’s statutory authority and would
be repealed. The EPA welcomes comment on the legal interpretation addressed in this proposed
rulemaking.

The EPA has not determined the scope of any potential rule under CAA section 111(d) to
regulate greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions from existing EGUs, and, if it will issue such a rule,
when it will do so and what form that rule will take. The EPA 1s considering the scope of such a
rule and is intending to issue an Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (ANPRM) in the near
future. That ANPRM will solicit information on systems of emission reduction that are in accord
with the legal interpretation proposed in this notice (7.e., those that are applicable at and to an
individual source). The ANPRM will also solicit information on compliance measures and state
planning requirements. However, the EPA is not soliciting comments on such information with
this proposal.

CAA section 111(d) requires the EPA to promulgate emission guidelines for existing
sources that reflect the “best system of emission reduction” (BSER) under certain circumstances.
Notwithstanding the CPP, all of the EPA’s other CAA section 111 regulations are based on a

BSER consisting of technological or operational measures that can be applied to or at a single

This document is a prepublication version, signed by EPA Administrator, E. Scott Pruitt on 10/10/2017. We have
taken steps to ensure the accuracy of this version, but it is not the official version.

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 1 ED_002061_00122209-00006



Page 7 of 47

source.! The CPP departed from this practice by instead setting carbon dioxide (COz) emission
guidelines for existing power plants that can only realistically be effected by measures that
cannot be employed to, for, or at a particular source. Instead, the CPP encompassed measures
that would generally require power generators to change their energy portfolios through
generation-shifting (rather than better equipping or operating their existing plants), including
through the creation or subsidization of significant amounts of generation from power sources
entirely outside the regulated source categories, such as solar and wind energy. This raised
substantial concerns that the CPP would necessitate changes to a state’s energy policy, such as a
grid-wide shift from coal-fired to natural gas-fired generation, and from fossil fuel-fired
generation to renewable generation.

Executive Order 13783 directs the EPA to determine whether the CPP exceeds the
bounds of the authority delegated to the Agency by Congress. See Executive Order 13783,
Sections 1(e) and 4(c). In the course of this review, the EPA is reconsidering the legal
interpretation underlying the CPP and is proposing to interpret the phrase “best system of
emission reduction” in a way that is consistent with the Agency’s historical practice of
determining a BSER by considering only measures that can be applied to or at the source. As
discussed in more detail below, under the interpretation proposed here, the CPP exceeds the
bounds of the statute. Consistent with this proposed interpretation, we propose to repeal the CPP
and rescind the accompanying legal memoranda.

I1. Background

! This is true not only for all of the handful of existing CAA section 111(d) regulations issued
prior to the CPP, but also of the much larger set of new source performance standards issued
under CAA section 111(b), which are predicated on the same key statutory term “best system of

emission reduction.”
This document is a prepublication version, signed by EPA Administrator, E. Scott Pruitt on 10/10/2017. We have
taken steps to ensure the accuracy of this version, but it is not the official version.
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A. The CPP

The EPA promulgated the CPP under section 111 of the CAA. 42 U.S.C. § 7411. Clean
Air Act section 111(b) authorizes the EPA to issue nationally applicable new source performance
standards limiting air pollution from “new sources” in source categories that cause or contribute
to air pollution that may reasonably be anticipated to endanger public health or welfare. /d. §
7411(b)(1). In 2015, the EPA issued such a rule for COz emissions from certain new fossil fuel-
fired power plants? in light of the Agency’s assessment “that [greenhouse gases] endanger public
health, now and in the future.” Standards of Performance for Greenhouse Gas Emissions from
New, Modified, and Reconstructed Stationary Sources: Electric Generating Units, 80 FR 64510,
64518 (October 23, 2015) (New Source Rule); see also Endangerment and Cause or Contribute
Findings for Greenhouse Gases Under Section 202(a) of the Clean Air Act, 74 FR 66496
(December 15, 2009).? Under certain circumstances, when the EPA issues a CAA section 111(b)
standard, the EPA must then prescribe CAA section 111(d) regulations under which each state
must submit a plan to establish standards for existing sources in the same category. 42 U.S.C.
§ 7411(d)(1). The EPA relied on that authority to issue the CPP, which, for the first time,
required states to submit plans specifically designed to limit CO2 emissions from certain fossil
tuel-fired power plants.

The CPP established emission guidelines for states to follow in limiting CO2 emissions

from those plants. These emission guidelines included nationally uniform COz emission

2 The rule identified “[f]ossil fuel-fired EGUs” as “by far the largest emitters of [greenhouse
gases] among stationary sources in the U.S., primarily in the form of CO2.” 80 FR 64510, 64522
(October 23, 2015).

3 The substance of the 2009 Endangerment Finding is not at issue in this proposed rulemaking,
and we are not soliciting comment on the EPA’s assessment of the impacts of GHGs with this

proposal.
This document is a prepublication version, signed by EPA Administrator, E. Scott Pruitt on 10/10/2017. We have
taken steps to ensure the accuracy of this version, but it is not the official version.
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performance rates for two subcategories of existing fossil fuel-fired power plants: electric utility
steam generating units and stationary combustion turbines. See 80 FR 64707,

In the CPP, the EPA determined that the BSER for COz emissions from existing fossil
tuel-fired power plants was the combination of emission rate improvements and limitations on
overall emissions by affected power plants that can be accomplished through a combination of
three sets of measures, which the EPA called “building blocks™:

1. Improving heat rate at affected coal-fired steam generating units;

2. Substituting increased generation from lower-emitting existing natural gas combined
cycle units for decreased generation from higher-emitting affected steam generating
units; and

3. Substituting increased generation from new zero-emitting renewable energy
generating capacity for decreased generation from affected fossil fuel-fired generating
units. /d. at 64707.

While building block 1 constituted measures that could be applied directly to a source—
that is, integrated into its design or operation—building blocks 2 and 3 employed measures that
departed from this traditional, source-specific approach to regulation and that were expressly
designed to shift the balance of coal-, gas-, and renewable-generated power at the grid-wide
level, subjecting these building blocks to claims that they constituted energy, rather than
environmental, policy.

That the CPP depends on the employment of measures that cannot be applied at and to an
individual source is evident from its treatment of coal-fired power plants. The rule established
performance standards for coal-fired plants assuming a uniform emissions rate well below that

which could be met by existing units through any retrofit technology of reasonable cost available
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at the time. This means that, in order to comply, many owners or operators of existing coal-fired
units were expected to shift generation from such units to gas-fired units or to renewable
generation. Similarly, the rule contemplated that gas-fired units would shift generation to
renewable generation. The rule, therefore, is formulated in reliance on and anticipation of actions
taken across the electric grid, rather than actions taken at and applied to individual units.
B. Judicial Challenge to the CPP

Due to concerns about the EPA’s legal authority and record, 27 states and a number of
other parties sought judicial review of the CPP in the United States Court of Appeals for the
District of Columbia Circuit. West Virginia v. EPA, No. 15-1363 (and consolidated cases) (D.C.
Cir.). On February 9, 2016, the Supreme Court stayed implementation of the CPP pending
judicial review. Order in Pending Case, West Virginia v. EFPA, No. 15A773 (U.S. February 9,
2016). The cases were argued before the D.C. Circuit, sitting en banc, on September 27, 2016.
Following oral argument, the EPA moved to hold the cases in abeyance, and, on April 28, 2017,
the court granted motions to hold the cases in abeyance for 60 days and directed the parties to
file briefs addressing whether the cases should be remanded to the Agency rather than held in
abeyance. Order, Docket Entry No. 1673071. On August 8, 2017, the court issued an order
holding the cases in abeyance for a further 60-day period and directed the EPA to file status
reports at 30-day intervals. Order, Docket Entry No. 1687838,

C. Executive Order 13783 and the EPA’s Review of the CPP

On March 28, 2017, President Trump issued Executive Order 13783, which affirms the
“national interest to promote clean and safe development of our Nation's vast energy resources,
while at the same time avoiding regulatory burdens that unnecessarily encumber energy
production, constrain economic growth, and prevent job creation.” See Executive Order 13783,
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Section 1(a). The Executive Order directs all executive departments and agencies, including the
EPA, to “immediately review existing regulations that potentially burden the development or use
of domestically produced energy resources and appropriately suspend, revise, or rescind those
that unduly burden the development of domestic energy resources beyond the degree necessary
to protect the public interest or otherwise comply with the law.” /d. Section 1(c). The Executive
Order further affirms that it is “the policy of the United States that necessary and appropriate
environmental regulations comply with the law.” /d. Section 1(e). Moreover, the Executive
Order specifically directs the EPA to review and initiate reconsideration proceedings to
“suspend, revise, or rescind” the CPP, “as appropriate and consistent with law.” /d. Section 4(a)-
(¢). (The Executive Order also directs the EPA to undertake this process of review and
reconsideration with regard to the New Source Rule issued under CAA section 111(b), which
was a condition precedent to the promulgation of the CPP.)

In a document signed the same day as Executive Order 13783, and published in the
Federal Register at 82 FR 16329 (April 4, 2017), the EPA announced that, consistent with the
Executive Order, it was initiating its review of the CPP and providing notice of forthcoming
proposed rulemakings consistent with the Executive Order.*

The EPA has concluded its initial review of the CPP, as directed by Executive Order
13783. That review raised substantial concerns that the CPP 1s not consistent with the policy
articulated in Section 1 of the Executive Order. See Executive Order 13783, Section 4(a). For

example, numerous states, regulated entities and other stakeholders warned that the CPP

* The EPA also withdrew the proposed federal plan and model trading rules, proposed
amendments to certain regulations under 40 CFR subpart B implementing CAA section 111(d),

and proposed rule regarding the Clean Energy Incentive Plan. 82 FR 16144 (April 3, 2017).
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threatened to impose massive costs on the power sector and consumers; invaded traditional areas
of state regulation over the mix of energy generation within their borders; departed radically
from prior regulatory practice and longstanding reading of the statute; and did not adequately
ensure the national interest in affordable, reliable electricity, including from coal generation. See
id. Section 1(b).

In the course of the EPA’s review of the CPP, the Agency also reconsidered its
interpretation of CAA section 111, and it is on that basis that the Agency now proposes to repeal
the CPP. Section 1 of the Executive Order recognizes that the EPA should, “to the extent
permitted by law, ... take appropriate actions to promote clean air and clean water for the
American people, while also respecting the proper roles of Congress and the States concerning
these matters in our constitutional republic.” /d. Section 1(d). As discussed below, the EPA
proposes to determine that the CPP is not within Congress’s grant of authority to the Agency
under the governing statute. It is not in the interests of the EPA, or in accord with its mission of
environmental protection consistent with the rule of law, to expend its resources along the path
of implementing a rule, receiving and passing judgment on state plans, or promulgating federal
plans in furtherance of a policy that is not within the bounds of our statutory authority.

The EPA is proposing to repeal the CPP in its entirety. The EPA proposes to take this
action because it proposes to determine that the rule exceeds its authority under the statute, that
those portions of the rule which arguably do not exceed its authority are not severable and
separately implementable, and that it is not appropriate for a rule that exceeds statutory
authority—especially a rule of this magnitude and with this level of impact on areas of
traditional state regulatory authority—to remain in existence pending a potential, successive

rulemaking process. Specifically, the performance standards that the CPP established for existing
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sources were predicated on a combined use of the three “building blocks” described above.
Because, under the interpretation proposed here, the second and third “building blocks” exceed
the EPA’s authority under CAA section 111, and because, as the EPA determined when it issued
the CPP, the first “building block,” as designed, could not stand on its own if the other “building
blocks” were repealed, any potential future rule that regulates GHG emissions from existing
EGUs under CAA section 111(d) must begin with a fundamental reevaluation of appropriate and
authorized control measures and recalculation of performance standards.

The EPA’s mission is to “protect and enhance the quality of the Nation’s air resources,”
42 U.S.C. § 7401(b)(1), but the Agency must do so within the authority delegated to it by
Congress. To that end, “[a] primary goal” of the CAA “is to encourage or otherwise promote
reasonable Federal, State, and local governmental actions, consistent with the provisions of [the
CAA]....742U.S.C. § 7401(c) (emphases added). Where the EPA’s regulations exceed the
Agency’s statutory authority, it is appropriate for the Agency to correct that error and consider
what statutory tools are duly available to it, to ensure that its regulations are effective,
enforceable, administrable, and grounded in valid authority. Accordingly, the EPA continues to
consider whether it should issue another CAA section 111(d) rule addressing GHG emissions
from existing EGUs and, if so, what would be the appropriate form and scope of that rule. See,
e.g., APIv. EFPA, 52 F3d 1113, 1119 (D.C. Cir. 1995) (“It is axiomatic that an administrative
agency’s power to promulgate legislative regulations is limited to the authority delegated by
Congress”) (internal citations omitted); see also Michigan v. EPA, 268 ¥.3d 1075 (D.C. Cir.
2001) (same). The EPA is engaged in the process of considering the scope of such a rule, and is
intending to issue an ANPRM in the near future to solicit information on systems of emission

reduction that are in accord with the legal interpretation proposed in this notice (7.e., those that
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are applicable to and at an individual source), as well as information on compliance measures
and state planning requirements. This notice does not solicit comment on such issues, which will
be open for comment in the ANPRM.

HI. Basis for Proposed Repeal of the CPP

The basis for the proposed repeal of the CPP is the EPA’s proposed interpretation of
CAA section 111, which is discussed in this notice. The EPA proposes to determine that this
interpretation is the most appropriate reading of the statute in light of the text, its legislative
history, prior practice under CAA section 111, statutory context, and in consideration of broader
policy implications. If the proposed interpretation is finalized, the CPP would be repealed.’

The EPA’s ability to revisit existing regulations is well-grounded in the law. Specifically,
the EPA has inherent authority to reconsider, repeal, or revise past decisions to the extent
permitted by law so long as the Agency provides a reasoned explanation. The CAA complements
the EPA’s inherent authority to reconsider prior rulemakings by providing the Agency with
broad authority to prescribe regulations as necessary. 42 U.S.C. § 7601(a). The authority to
reconsider prior decisions exists in part because the EPA’s interpretations of statutes it
administers “[are not] instantly carved in stone,” but must be evaluated “on a continuing basis.”
Chevron U.S.A. Inc. v. NRDC, Inc., 467 U.S. 837, 863-64 (1984). This is true when, as is the

case here, review is undertaken “in response to . . . a change in administrations.” National Cable

3 Under the EPA’s proposal, the Agency lacks authority to consider measures other than those
that apply at, to, and for a particular source when determining the BSER. Because the CPP is in
large part premised on such measures, if the proposed interpretation is finalized, the CPP would
be repealed. Although on-site efficiency measures may be considered in a future CAA section
111 standard, as explained in the CPP, building block 1, as analyzed, cannot stand on its own. 80
FR 64758 n.444; see also id. at 64658 (discussing severability of the building blocks). As noted

above, the EPA is not taking comment on on-site efficiency measures with this proposal.
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& Telecommunications Ass’nv. Brand X Internet Services, 545 U.S. 967, 981 (2005). Indeed,
“[a]gencies obviously have broad discretion to reconsider a regulation at any time.” Clean Air
Council v. Pruitt, 862 F3d 1, 8-9 (D.C. Cir. 2017).

After reconsidering the statutory text, context, and legislative history, and in
consideration of the EPA’s historical practice under CAA section 111 as reflected in its other
existing CAA section 111 regulations, the Agency proposes to return to a reading of CAA
section 111(a)(1) (and its constituent term, “best system of emission reduction”) as being limited
to emission reduction measures that can be applied to or at an individual stationary source. That
is, such measures must be based on a physical or operational change to a building, structure,
facility, or installation at that source, rather than measures that the source’s owner or operator
can implement on behalf of the source at another location. The EPA believes that this is the best
construction of CAA section 111(a)(1), as explained in detail below, for several reasons. First, it
accords with the meaning and application of relevant terms and phrases in CAA section 111 as
they are used in other, related sections of the CAA. Second, it aligns with the Congressional
intent underlying CAA section 111 as informed by relevant legislative history. Third, it aligns
with the EPA’s prior understanding of CAA section 111 as reflected in the Agency’s prior
regulatory actions.® Fourth, it avoids illogical results when considered in light of other provisions
of the statute. Finally, it avoids a policy shift of great significance for the relationship between
the federal government and the states and avoids conflict with other federal legislation and

interference with the separate role and jurisdiction of another federal agency, where there is

% As noted above, the EPA’s prior understanding of this statutory section and its key term “best
system of emission reduction” is reflected not only in the handful of existing CAA section
111(d) rules that predated the CPP, but also in the much larger set of new-source rules under

CAA section 111(b).
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inadequate indication that Congress intended to authorize the EPA to take actions leading to
those results.
A. Statutory Text

The phrase “system of emission reduction” provides the starting point for developing
performance standards under CAA section 111. An expansive interpretation of the phrase
“system of emission reduction” would yield a greater universe of measures that could be
considered to establish emission limits; conversely, a narrower reading would have the opposite
effect. See 80 FR 64720 (explaining that the “first step” s to “identify ‘system[s] of emission
reduction’ that have been ‘adequately demonstrated’ for a particular category.”).” Thus, the
phrase’s scope correlates directly with the breadth of the Administrator’s discretion in
determining what system is the best for purposes of establishing the degree of emission
limitation to be reflected in a standard of performance. See 42 U.S.C. § 7411(a)(1) (“[t]he term
‘standard of performance’ means a standard for emissions of air pollutants which reflects the
degree of emission limitation achievable through the application of the [BSER]").

Though not further defined in the CAA, the phrase “system of emission reduction”
cannot be read in isolation. In promulgating the CPP, the EPA explained that the phrase carries
important limitations. /d. at 64762. Specifically, the EPA reasoned that “because the ‘degree of
emission limitation’ must be ‘achievable through the application of the best system of emission

reduction’ (emphasis added), the ‘system of emission reduction’ must be limited to a set of

7 Historically, this step is referred to as a “technology review,” and leads to a level of control
“commonly referred to as best demonstrated technology (BDT).” See Oil and Natural Gas
Sector: New Source Performance Standards and National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air
Pollutants Review, 76 FR 52738, 52741 (August 23, 2011); Regulating Greenhouse Gas

Emissions Under the Clean Air Act, 73 FR 44354, 44486 (July 30, 2008).
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measures that work together to reduce emissions that are implementable by the sources
themselves.” /d. “As a practical matter,” the EPA continued, “the ‘source’ includes the ‘owner or
operator’ of any building, structure, facility, or installation for which a standard of performance
is applicable.” Id. “Thus, a ‘system of emission reduction’ for purposes of CAA section 111(d)
means a set of measures that source owners or operators can implement to achieve an emission
limitation applicable to their existing source.” /d. In reaching this conclusion, the EPA noted that

2

“the terms ‘implement’ and ‘apply’ are used interchangeably.” See Legal Memorandum at 84
n.175. Here, contrary to the conclusion in the CPP, the EPA is proposing to interpret the phrase
“through the application of the best system of emission reduction” as requiring that the BSER be
something that can be applied to or at the source and not something that the source’s owner or
operator can implement on behalf of the source at another location. Interpreting the statute as
carrying this additional limiting principle ensures conformity with the statutory context and
congressional intent.

The EPA’s proposed interpretation is also guided by CAA section 111(d)’s direction that
standards be established “for any existing source,” (emphasis added) and not for other sources or
entities. See also 42 U.S.C. § 7401(a)(3) (finding that “air pollution control at its source is the
primary responsibility of States and local governments”) (emphasis added). Further, the “for any
existing source” phrasing in CAA section 111(d) mirrors the “for new sources” phrasing in the
first sentence of section 111(b)(1)(B). In other words, as applied to both new source standards
and existing source standards promulgated under CAA section 111, if standards must be set for

individual sources, it is reasonable to expect that such standards would be predicated on

measures that can be applied to or at those same individual sources.
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Adopting a source-oriented reading of “through the application of the best system of
emission reduction” also keeps CAA section 111 in line with other CAA standard-setting
provisions. The term “application” is used throughout the statute in many different contexts. But
under the CAA’s standard-setting provisions, it signals a physical or operational change to a
source—for example, maximum achievable control technology (MACT) is developed “through
application of measures, processes, methods, systems or techniques including, but not limited to,
measures which—(A) reduce the volume of, or eliminate emissions of, such pollutants through
process changes, substitution of materials or other modifications, (B) enclose systems or
processes to eliminate emissions, (C) collect, capture or treat such pollutants when released from
a process, stack, storage or fugitive emissions point, (D) are design, equipment, work practice, or
operational standards . . ., or (E) are a combination of the above;”® best available control
technology (BACT) is developed “through application of production processes and available
methods, systems, and techniques, including fuel cleaning, clean fuels, or treatment or innovative

999

fuel combustion techniques for control;”” and motor vehicle and engine standards reflect the

“application of technology,”'

and the “application of the requisite control measures” to specific
sources.!! In short, the term suggests that—while a source’s owner or operator indeed
implements each of these measures—the measures should be applied to the source itself (7.e.,

from the perspective of the source and not its owner or operator).

B. Legislative History

842 U.S.C. § 7412(d)(2).

242 U.S.C. § 7479e).

1042 U.S.C. § 7521(a)(3)(A)(i) (applying technology available by model year for mobile
sources).

142 U.S.C. § 7521(a)(3)(D) (concerning rebuilding practices of heavy-duty engines).
This document is a prepublication version, signed by EPA Administrator, E. Scott Pruitt on 10/10/2017. We have
taken steps to ensure the accuracy of this version, but it is not the official version.

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 1 ED_002061_00122209-00018



Page 19 of 47

Even if the term “application” did not denote a source-oriented “system of emission
reduction,” the term “system” too is historically rooted in a physical or operational change to the
source itself. As discussed in the CPP, CAA section 111(a)(1)—particularly the phrase “system
of emission reduction”—evolved from a joint conference between committees of the House and
Senate during the 1970 CAA Amendments. 80 FR 64763—-64. The underlying House bill
provided that new sources must be “designed and equipped” to control emissions using
“available technology.” H.R. Rep. No. 91-1146 (June 3, 1970), 1970 CAA Legis. Hist. at 900;
see also HR. 17255, § 5, 1970 CAA Legis. Hist. at 922. The Senate bill provided that standards
of performance reflect achievable limits “through application of the latest available control
technology, processes, operating methods, or other alternatives.” S. 4358, § 6, 1970 CAA Legis.
Hist. at 555. Though the Senate’s formulation is broader than the House bill, “other alternatives”
should be interpreted ejusdem generis (of the same kind, class, or nature) with the preceding
control techniques. “Control technology,” “processes,” and “operating methods” are properly
read to denote measures applied at or to, and implementable at the level of, the individual
source—and “other alternatives” should be read in the same fashion. Thus, the emission-
reduction measures contemplated by the Senate also targeted a physical or operational change to
the source itself. In short, both bills were premised on physical or operational changes that would
be applied to a source, and there is no indication that the enacted phrase “system of emission
reduction” was intended to expand the scope of CAA section 111 to authorize the EPA to

determine that the BSER encompasses measures that extend beyond-the-source itself.!?

12 “System” appears in a few places in the 1970 CAA Amendments. Most notably, Congress
used the term throughout Title I, which sheds light on what Congress may have understood
“system” to mean at the time. Specifically, section 202 of the CAA provided that “[s]uch
standards shall be applicable to such vehicles and engines for their useful life . . . whether such
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The 1977 CAA Amendments do not undermine this understanding. Congress added the
word “technological” to “system of emission reduction” in order to “upgrade” standards of
performance “to require the use of the best technological system” and “preclude the use of low-
sulfur coal alone as a means of compliance.”"® HR. Rep. No. 95-654 (August 3, 1977), 1977
CAA Legis. Hist. at 510. Thus, as explained in the House report, the addition of the word
“technological” was intended to prohibit sole reliance on a particular control technique from

being considered the BSER. It was not an indication that CAA section 111 previously authorized

vehicles and engines are designed as complete systems or incorporate devices to prevent or
control such pollution.” H.R. Rep. No. 91-1783 (December 17, 1970), 1970 CAA Legis. Hist. at
166. See also, e.g., section 203, id. at 170 (“for the purpose of permitting modifications to the
emission control device or system of such vehicle”); section 206, id. (“The Administrator shall
test any emission control system incorporated in a motor vehicle or motor vehicle engine” and
“the Administrator shall issue a verification of compliance with emission standards for such
system when incorporated in vehicles”). In each of these instances, the word “system” appears to
be more expansive than a discrete emission control device, but is nonetheless a vital part of the
source: the vehicle or vehicle engine. It is evident, therefore, that Congress associated the word
“system” with phrases that correspond with a source-specific scope. In CAA section 111, the
word “system” as used within the phrase “best system of emission reduction” and its relevance in
setting standards of performance, which are themselves established “for new sources” and “for
any existing source,” similarly suggest that a “system of emission reduction” is applied to or at
the source.

13 In the CPP, the EPA explained that Congress added “precombustion cleaning or treatment of
fuels” to CAA section 111 because it recognized that even technological “systems of emission
reduction” could involve actions that were implemented on behalf of the source and not merely
applied to the source. 80 FR 64765, Legal Memorandum at 87, 129. First, Congress added
“precombustion cleaning or treatment of fuels” to the definition of “technological system of
continuous emission reduction” in CAA section 111(a)(7) because Congress also redefined
“standard of performance” to require fossil fuel-fired power plants to achieve “a percentage
reduction in the emissions . . . which would have resulted from the use of fuels which are not
subject to treatment prior to combustion.” 1977 CAA Amendments, Pub. L. 95-95, § 109, 91
Stat. 685, 700 (August 7, 1977). Second, precombustion cleaning or treatment of fuels is integral
to the operation of a regulated source and does not necessarily occur off-site of an existing
source. And regardless of where these preparatory measures are conducted, the use of the fuels is
a measure applicable to and performed at the level of, and at or within, the bounds of an
individual source. Finally, to the extent that fuel cleaning does occur off-site, this demonstrates
that Congress understood CAA section 111 to be limited to source-specific measures unless

specific authorization was otherwise provided.
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beyond-the-source controls. The question of whether a control technique or emission reduction
system is or 1s not “technological” is a distinct question from whether it applies at and is limited
to the level of the individual source.

Though the 1990 CAA Amendments removed the term “technological” from CAA
section 111(a)(1), there is no indication that Congress intended to expand the phrase “system of
emission reduction” beyond a physical or operational change to the source. With the newly
enacted Acid Rain provisions under title IV (which instituted a sulfur dioxide (SO2) cap-and-
trade program for fossil fuel-fired power plants), Congress no longer required the use of
technological controls under CAA section 111, but provided that if the SOz cap for new sources
was abolished, then CAA section 111 would again impose a technological standard. 1990 CAA
Amendments, Pub. L. 101-549, § 403, 104 Stat. at 2631 (November 15, 1990). In effect, this
authorized the EPA to consider revising standards to once again allow new sources to use low-
sulfur coal in lieu of installing the latest technological control. But there is nothing in the
statutory text or its legislative history to suggest that CAA section 111 standards may be based
on something other than a physical or operational change to the source itself.

C. Prior Agency Practice

Associating a “system of emission reduction” with a physical or operational change to the
source itself reflects the EPA’s historical understanding of this statutory provision as reflected in
its prior regulatory actions under this statutory provision. Indeed, the EPA has issued numerous
rules under CAA section 111 (both the limited set of existing source rules under CAA section
111(d) and the much larger set of new source rules under CAA section 111(b)). All those rules

limited their BSER to physical or operational measures taken at and applicable to individual
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sources, with only one exception—a rule that was vacated by the D.C. Circuit on other
grounds.'*

The EPA first interpreted the phrase “system of emission reduction” as it relates to CAA
section 111(d) when the Agency promulgated procedures and requirements for the submittal of
state plans in 1975. At the time of the 1970 CAA Amendments, CAA section 111(d) required
states to submit plans that established “emission standards” for existing sources, a term that the
statute did not define. In its 1974 notice of proposed rulemaking, the EPA interpreted that term
by explaining that CAA “section 111(d) permits [the Administrator] to approve State emission
standards only if they reflect application of the best systems of emission reduction (considering
the cost of such reduction) that are available for designated facilities.” 39 FR 36102, 36102
(October 7, 1974) (emphasis added). By interpreting “emission standards” as requiring
application of the BSER, however, many commenters were confused and assumed that the
degree of control required would be the same as that required by a “standard of performance” for
new sources under CAA section 111(b), which Congress had explicitly defined in that way.'> To
clear up this confusion, the EPA explained that, “[a]lthough the general principle (application of
best adequately demonstrated rechnology, considering costs) will be the same in both cases, the

degrees of control represented by the Agency’s emission guidelines will ordinarily be less

4 The Clean Air Mercury Rule, 70 FR 28606 (May 18, 2005), as discussed in footnote 21, was
still ultimately predicated on measures taken at the level of individual sources, an approach
fundamentally different than the CPP’s second and third “building blocks.”

15 Currently, the same statutory definition in CAA section 111(a)(1) applies to new and existing
sources, and we can identify no legislative history to suggest that Congress had a different scope
in mind for existing sources. We think it unlikely that Congress would have intended a
significantly broader scope without indicating some intent to do so. Indeed, the opposite may be
true. In 1977, Congress expressly declined to apply the term “technological” to existing source
performance standards. But after the 1990 CAA Amendments, the same definition applies to new
and existing source performance standards.
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stringent than those required by standards of performance for new sources because the costs of
controlling existing facilities will ordinarily be greater than those for control of new sources.”!®
40 FR 53340, 53341 (November 17, 1975) (emphases added). The EPA also described the
legislative history of CAA section 111, explaining that Congress “intended the fechnology-based
approach of that section to extend (making allowances for the costs of controlling existing
sources) to action under section 111(d). In this view, it was unnecessary . . . to specify explicit
substantive criteria in section 111(d) because the intent to require a fechnology-based approach
could be inferred from placement of the provision in section 111.” /d. at 53342 (emphases

added); see also id. at 53343 (“[T]he approach taken in section 111(d) may be viewed as . . . [a]

decision[] . . . [t]o adopt a technology-based approach similar to that for new sources.”). Thus, in

16 The EPA’s historical view that emission guidelines for existing sources would be less stringent
than standards of performance for new sources also weighs against the expansive interpretation
of “system of emission reduction” adopted in the CPP. As many commenters on that rule pointed
out, the EPA’s approach in the CPP, relying on measures beyond those that can be applied to and
at an individual source, resulted in the uniform performance rates prescribed by the CAA section
111(d) emission guidelines being more stringent than the standards of performance the Agency
promulgated for new sources under CAA section 111(b). 80 FR 64785-87. We justified this
result in two primary ways. First, we pointed out the timing differences between the two rules’
requirements, noting that the CAA section 111(b) standards of performance were applicable as of
the date of the proposed rule, whereas the CPP’s requirements were not applicable until 7 years
after promulgation, with final compliance due in 2030. /d. at 64785. Thus, we concluded that the
proper “point of comparison” was the year 2023, right after the first obligations under the CPP
were due and the Agency’s 8-year review of the CAA section 111(b) standards would be
complete. /d. Second, we argued that the CPP contained sufficient flexibilities, both for sources
and for states, that any comparison between the two rules was inapt. /d. at 64785-86. The EPA
has reconsidered these arguments and now considers them insufficient justification for
abandoning the Agency’s historical view of the appropriate relative stringency of CAA section
111(b) and 111(d) requirements. With respect to timing, it is entirely speculative that some future
standard of performance promulgated under CAA section 111(b) might be more stringent than
the current CAA section 111(d) emission guidelines. And while the CPP does contain certain
flexibilities to ease the burdens of compliance, such as phased-in compliance deadlines, those
flexibilities were only necessary because actual affected sources could not meet the overly
stringent uniform performance rates (or the equivalent rate- or mass-based goals) without them.
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1975, the EPA clearly interpreted the phrase “system of emission reduction” to be technology-
based and source-focused for both CAA section 111(b) standards of performance and CAA
section 111(d) emission standards.” The EPA believes that the Agency’s historical interpretation
of CAA section 111(d) and the phrase “system of emission reduction,” expressed at the point in
time closest to when Congress enacted those provisions, is the most appropriate reading of the
statute.
D. Statutory Context

The EPA’s proposed interpretation of CAA section 111 is reinforced by the section’s
broader statutory context. Indeed, interpreting CAA section 111(a)(1) to extend beyond-the-
source could have the unintended consequence of imposing greater emissions reductions under
CAA section 111 than could be established as the BACT under CAA section 165, which relies
on CAA section 111 standards as a floor.'® See 40 CFR 52.21(b)(12); see also 40 CFR

51.165(a)(1)(xii1) (defining “lowest achievable emission rate,” 7.e., LAER, as in no event

17 Additionally, the EPA historically equated the phrase “system of emission reduction” with the
CAA’s “best available retrofit technology” (BART) requirement. See 45 FR 80084, 80090
(December 2, 1980) (codified at 40 CFR 51.301) (defining BART as an “emission limitation
based on the degree of reduction achievable through the application of the best system of
continuous emission reduction for each pollutant which is emitted by an existing stationary
facility”). While the EPA’s BART regulations permit states, subject to certain conditions, to
implement trading programs and other “alternative” measures in lieu of BART, see 40 CFR
51.308(e)(2), these measures are not considered to be BART. Instead, states may adopt them
“rather than requiring sources to install, operate, and maintain BART,” but only if they will
achieve “greater reasonable progress” toward Congress’s national visibility goal. /d. (emphasis
added).

18 Although BACT applies to new and modified sources, like CAA section 111(b), the EPA can
discern no textual basis in CAA section 111(a)(1) to interpret the BSER differently for purposes
of CAA section 111(d). Indeed, the EPA ruled out generation-shifting measures for new sources
based on practicability rather than legal grounds. See Legal Memorandum at 1-5. Accordingly,
interpretative constraints applicable to CAA section 111(a)(1) for purposes of CAA section
111(b) should also apply for purposes of CAA section 111(d).
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authorizing emissions “in excess of the amount allowable under an applicable new source
performance standard”). BACT requires certain major emitting sources'” to achieve an emission
limitation “through application of production processes and available methods, systems, and
techniques, including fuel cleaning, clean fuels, or treatment or innovative fuel combustion
techniques for control.” 42 U.S.C. § 7479(3). Traditionally, the EPA has recommended that
permitting authorities “conduct a separate BACT analysis for each emissions unit at a facility,”
but more recently has interpreted CAA section 169 to include control methods that can be used
facility-wide. EPA, PSD and Title V Permitting Guidance for Greenhouse Gases, 22-23 (March
2011). Nonetheless, the EPA has consistently held that BACT encompasses “all ‘available’
control options . . . that have the potential for practical application to the emissions unit and the
regulated pollutant under evaluation.” /d. at 24.

In other words, BACT must be applied to the source itself (on a unit-specific or facility-
wide basis) and does not include control options that are beyond-the-source, such as generation-
shifting measures.?’ Accordingly, the EPA proposes to determine that the statutory scheme is
appropriately read to harmonize these provisions. Under this interpretation, the BSER should be
interpreted as a source-specific measure, in light of the fact that BACT standards, for which the

BSER is expressly linked by statutory text, are unambiguously intended to be source-specific.

242 U.S.C. § 7479(1) (defining “major emitting facility” as sources within certain source
categories “which emit, or have the potential to emit, one hundred tons per year or more of any
air pollutant” or “any other source with the potential to emit two hundred and fifty tons per year
or more of any air pollutant.”).

20 See U.S. EPA, PSD and Title V Permitting Guidance for Greenhouse Gases, 24 (March 2011)
(BACT encompasses “all ‘available’ control options . . . that have the potential for practical
application to the emissions unit”).
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Neither title IV nor the interstate-transport rulemakings (e.g., the Cross-State Air
Pollution Rule) supports a different interpretation of CAA section 111. In the CPP, the EPA
identified the Acid Rain program under title IV and the various interstate-transport rulemakings
as evidence of the viability of cap-and-trade programs for the utility power sector. 80 FR 64696~
97. But recognizing “the long history of trading” under title IV and CAA section
110(a)(2)(D)(1)(I) to demonstrate the “achievability” of the “performance rates” in the CPP does
not clarify the interpretive question the Agency faces under CAA section 111(a)(1)—i.e., what is
the “best system of emission reduction” that can be applied to an affected source? To the
contrary, Congress expressly established the cap-and-trade program under title IV, 42 U.S.C. §§
7651-76510, and expressly authorized the use of “marketable permits” to implement ambient air
quality standards under CAA section 110, id. at § 7410(a)(2)(A). We think it unlikely that
Congress would have silently authorized the Agency to point to trading in order to justify
generation-shifting as a “system of emission reduction.”?!

Therefore, the EPA proposes that the BSER be limited to measures that physically or
operationally can be applied to or at the source itself to reduce its emissions. Generation
shifting—which accounts for a significant percentage of the emissions reductions projected in
the CPP and without which individual sources could not meet the CPP’s requirements—fails to

comply with this limitation. Accordingly, the EPA proposes to repeal the CPP.

L. Broader Policy Concerns

21 Even the cap-and-trade program promulgated in the since-vacated Clean Air Mercury Rule,
was “based on control technology available” for installation at individual existing sources. 70 FR
28617. It was not predicated on a BSER that encompassed measures that could not be applied at

or to a particular source.
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Finally, the EPA’s proposed interpretation is more consistent with certain broader policy
concerns of the Agency and stakeholders. Those policy concerns are discussed below, and the
EPA invites comment generally on the policy implications of the legal interpretation proposed in
this action. The EPA notes that States, the regulated community, and other commenters
identitied potentially serious economic and political implications arising from the CPP’s reliance
on measures that extend beyond those that can be applied at and to a particular, individual
source, such as generation shifting, which in turn raised questions as to whether the
interpretations underlying the CPP violated the “clear statement” rule. See Util. Air Regulatory
Grp. v. EPA, 134 S. Ct. 2427, 2444 (2014) (quoting FDA v. Brown & Williamson Tobacco
Corp., 529 U.S. 120, 160 (2000)) (holding that, under certain circumstances, an interpretation
that would have “vast ‘economic and political significance’ requires a clear statement from
Congress assigning the agency that authority). The EPA seeks comment on whether the
interpretation proposed today, by substantially diminishing the potential economic and political
consequences of any future regulation of CO2 emissions from existing fossil fuel-fired EGUs,
has the advantage of not implicating this doctrine, in that it would avoid potentially
transformative economic, policy, and political significance in the absence of a clear
Congressional statement of intent to confer such authority on the Agency.

In addition, while the EPA is authorized to regulate emissions from sources in the power
sector and to consider the impact of its standards on the generation mix in setting standards to
avoid negative energy impacts, regulation of the nation’s generation mix itself is not within the
Agency’s authority. Regulation of the energy sector qua energy sector is generally undertaken by
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) and states, depending on which markets are

being regulated. The EPA recognizes that Part I of the Federal Power Act (sections 201-223 (16

This document is a prepublication version, signed by EPA Administrator, E. Scott Pruitt on 10/10/2017. We have
taken steps to ensure the accuracy of this version, but it is not the official version.

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 1 ED_002061_00122209-00027



Page 28 of 47

U.S.C. §§ 824-824w)) establishes long-recognized regulatory authority for the FERC over
electric utilities engaged in interstate commerce, including wholesale sales, transmission of
electric energy in interstate commerce, and reliability. Moreover, section 310 of the CAA, 42
U.S.C. § 7610(a), states that the Act “shall not be construed as superseding or limiting the
authorities and responsibilities, under any other provision of law, of the Administrator or any
other Federal officer, department, or agency.” The EPA solicits comment on whether the CPP
exceeded the EPA’s proper role and authority in this regard and whether the Agency’s proposed
reading in this notice, which limits the BSER to measures that can be applied to or at individual
sources, would ensure that CAA section 111 has not been construed in a way that supersedes or
limits the authorities and responsibilities of the FERC or that infringes upon the roles of the

states.

F. Proposed Rescission of Legal Memorandum

As part of this action, the EPA is also proposing to rescind the documents in the CPP
docket titled “Legal Memorandum for Proposed Carbon Pollution Emission Guidelines for
Existing Electric Utility Generating Units” (in the docket for the proposed rule) and “Legal
Memorandum Accompanying Clean Power Plan for Certain Issues” (a supplementary document
in the docket for the final rule), to the extent those memoranda are inconsistent with the statutory
interpretation that the EPA has proposed in this notice. The EPA is proposing to rescind these
documents because, as is evident from the discussion above, they are in large part and in
fundamental premise inconsistent with the statutory interpretation proposed here.

Specifically, significant portions of the documents are devoted to arguing that the BSER
on which performance standards under CAA section 111(d) is based can encompass measures
other than physical or operational changes taken at the level of and applicable to an individual
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source. The point of departure for this interpretation is a perceived ambiguity in the word
“system” within the phrase “best system of emissions reduction.” For the reasons stated above,
the EPA is proposing to determine that, in full consideration of the statutory text and context, the
legislative history, the Agency’s historical practice under CAA section 111(d), and certain policy
consequences of the statutory interpretation underlying the CPP, the best reading of the statute is
that the BSER does not encompass the types of measures that constitute the second and third
“building block™ of the CPP. To the extent that the statutory interpretation embodied in the legal
memoranda contradicts or is otherwise inconsistent with the interpretation proposed in this
action, the EPA intends that the interpretation proposed here, to the extent it is finalized, shall
supersede the interpretation in the memoranda. The EPA welcomes comment on this proposed
interpretation.

Further, other significant portions of the memoranda, especially the supplemental one, are
concerned with defending particular aspects of the CPP’s constituent “building blocks.” For the
reasons stated above, the EPA is proposing to determine that the second and third “building
blocks” exceed the Agency’s authority under the statute, and, in accord with the Agency’s
position when it issued the CPP, that the first “building block™ cannot stand on its own in the
form in which it was issued. The two legal memoranda are therefore in material part either
inconsistent with this proposal or rendered moot by it.

Accordingly, to the extent that the EPA finalizes its statutory interpretation as proposed
in this notice, the Agency proposes to rescind the documents to the extent they are inconsistent
with the finalized positions. The EPA is intending to issue an ANPRM in the near future to

solicit comment on the existing EGUs. Other issues discussed in the memoranda may be relevant

This document is a prepublication version, signed by EPA Administrator, E. Scott Pruitt on 10/10/2017. We have
taken steps to ensure the accuracy of this version, but it is not the official version.

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 1 ED_002061_00122209-00029



Page 30 of 47

to such a potential rulemaking, and the EPA’s position with regard to those issues will be
determined in the course of any such rulemaking, as required and appropriate.
G. Conclusion

For these reasons discussed above, the EPA is proposing that the BSER must be
something that physically or operationally changes the source itself, and that is taken at or
applied to individual, particular sources. Generation shifting—which accounts for a significant
percentage of the emissions reductions projected in the CPP and without which sources could not
meet the CPP’s requirements and state plans could not be approved—fails to comply with this
limitation. As explained in the CPP and the accompanying Legal Memorandum, generation
shifting is accomplished through actions that owners or operators take on behalf of an affected
source that might lead only indirectly to emissions reductions from the source. For example,
owners or operators were expected to purchase power from qualifying lower-emitting generators
or invest in lower-emitting generation, or purchase emissions credits. See 80 FR 64796-97
(building block 2); id. at 64804-06 (building block 3); and Legal Memorandum, 137-48. But
none of these options involves a physical or operational change applicable to the source itself.
Accordingly, the EPA proposes to repeal the CPP and supersede the legal interpretations
presented in it and the accompanying Legal Memorandum.
IV. Statutory and Executive Order Reviews

Additional information about these statutes and Executive Orders can be found at
https.//’www.epa.gov/laws-regulations/law s-and-executive-orders.
A. Executive Order 12866: Regulatory Planning and Review and Executive Order 13563

Improving Regulation and Regulatory Review
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This proposed action is an economically significant regulatory action that was submitted
to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) for review. Any changes made in response to
OMB recommendations have been documented in the docket. The EPA prepared an analysis of
the avoided compliance costs and forgone benefits associated with this action in the analysis
years of 2020, 2025, and 2030. This analysis, which is contained in the Regulatory Impact
Analysis (RIA) for this rulemaking is consistent with Executive Order 12866 and is available in
the docket.

We present various preliminary approaches to assess the regulatory impacts of the CPP
repeal proposal. The analysis underscores the substantial uncertainties associated with the
possible benefits and costs of CPP implementation, and, therefore, the preliminary repeal being
offered at this time.?? Due to these uncertainties, the EPA requests comments on the avoided
compliance costs, forgone benefits, modeling assumptions, uncertainties, and other relevant
matters related to the development of the RIA for this rulemaking. This RIA uses two
quantitative approaches to analyze the effects of the CPP in order to present information on the
potential effects of the proposed repeal of the CPP. The first approach involves a modest
reworking of the 2015 CPP RIA to increase transparency and illuminate the uncertainties
associated with assessing benefits and costs of the CPP, as reflected in the 2015 analysis, as well
as analyzing the potential effects of the CPP repeal. More specifically, this analysis increases
transparency of the 2015 CPP analysis by presenting the energy efficiency cost savings as a

benefit rather than a cost reduction and provides a bridge to future analyses that the agency is

22 The EPA plans to conduct a more robust analysis before any final action is taken by the
agency and provide an opportunity for the public to comment on the re-analysis. The EPA also
plans to carry forward the approach that underscores the uncertainty associated with any agency

action of this magnitude, especially in actions where discretion is afforded to State governments.
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committed to performing. The current analysis also provides alternative approaches for
examining the forgone benefits, including more clearly distinguishing the direct benefits from
the co-benefits and exploring alternative ways to illustrate the impacts on the total net benefits of
the uncertainty in health co-benefits at various PMzs cutpoints. This approach shifts the focus to
the domestic (rather than global) social cost of carbon, and employs both 3 percent and 7 percent
discount rates. Finally, we consider how changing market conditions and technologies may have
affected future actions that may have been undertaken by states to comply with the CPP and how
these changes may affect the potential benefits and costs of the CPP repeal.

The second approach uses the U.S. Energy Information Administration’s (EIA) 2017
Annual Energy Outlook (AEO) projections to present a series of observations on recent power
sector trends and produce alternative estimates of the forgone benefits and avoided compliance
costs arising from the proposed repeal of the CPP. We also provide a review of recent studies of
the CPP’s projected costs and CO2 emission reductions performed by non-governmental
institutions in order to provide a broader understanding of the uncertainties associated with the
proposed repeal of the CPP.

The RIA presents several different estimates of avoided compliance costs using various
accounting frameworks. A first set of avoided compliance costs is based upon estimates
presented in the 2015 Final CPP RIA, and counts savings from energy efficiency programs as a
benefit of the rule, not as a cost-savings. A second set of avoided compliance costs is based upon
a comparison of the AEQ2017 Reference Case (CPP) and the AEQ2017 No CPP Case. Here, the
accounting framework treats the value of reduced electricity demand from demand-side energy
efficiency programs as a cost credit (or negative cost). However, the EPA was unable to

approximate the value of energy cost savings attributable to the demand-side energy efficiency
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measures using the AEO2017-based information. Because the EPA could not make this
adjustment to the benefits and costs estimates using the AEOQ2017 information, the 2015 CPP
RIA-based and AEO2017-based benefit and cost estimates cannot be directly compared with
each other.

We estimate the forgone climate benefits from this proposed rulemaking using a measure
of the domestic social cost of carbon (SC-CO2), using estimates of forgone CO2 emission
reductions from both the 2015 RIA and the AEQ2017 cases. The SC-COz is a metric that
estimates the monetary value of impacts associated with marginal changes in COz emissions in a
given year. The SC-COz estimates used in this RIA focus on the direct impacts of climate change
that are anticipated to occur within U.S. borders. As mentioned earlier, the EPA approximated
the value of energy cost savings from the reduced demand attributable to the demand-side energy
efficiency measures and this value is counted as a forgone benefit. Also, under this proposed
repeal, the CPP would no longer reduce emissions of certain precursor pollutants (e.g., SOz,
NOx, and directly emitted particles), which in turn would no longer lower ambient
concentrations of PMas and ozone. The RIA presents the estimated forgone health co-benefits
associated with the projected changes in ambient air quality under the CPP. We estimate the
forgone benefits using three alternative assumptions regarding the risk of PM-related premature
death.

The first approach calculates PM-related premature deaths at all levels of PMas. We then
present two alternative approaches: a) forgone PMas co-benefits fall to zero in areas whose
model-predicted air quality is at or below the annual average PM2.5s NAAQS of 12 pg/m? in the
year 2025; and b) forgone PMa.s co-benefits fall to zero the below the LML in the

epidemiological studies used to derive the concentration response function (8 and 5.8 pg/m*). To

This document is a prepublication version, signed by EPA Administrator, E. Scott Pruitt on 10/10/2017. We have
taken steps to ensure the accuracy of this version, but it is not the official version.

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 1 ED_002061_00122209-00033



Page 34 of 47

calculate the forgone co-benefits for this proposed rule, we applied a benefit-per-ton estimate
corresponding to broad regions of the U.S. and that is based upon an emissions reduction
scenario from the 2014 CPP proposal to the corresponding forgone emission reductions. As the
benefit-per-ton estimates are based on a scenario that does not match the forgone emission
reductions in this rulemaking, the estimates may over- or under-state the value of the forgone
PM:zs and ozone-related benefits. To the extent feasible, the EPA intends to perform full-scale
photochemical air quality modeling to inform subsequent CPP-related regulatory analyses.
Additionally, as part of a project now underway, the EPA is systematically evaluating the
uncertainty associated with its technique for generating and applying this reduced-form
technique for quantifying benefits, with the goal of better understanding the suitability of this
and comparable approaches to estimating the health impacts of criteria pollutant emissions
changes. The EPA will make drafts of these analysis available to the public at the time of peer
review, consistent with OMB’s Information Quality Bulletin for Peer Review.

The co-benefit analysis draws upon estimates of forgone SOz and NOx emission
reductions from both the 2015 RIA and the AEO2017 cases. As the RIA analyzes costs and
benefits applying a variety of different methods and discount rates, there is a relatively large
number of results.

In the decision-making process, because, in part, of the interactions mentioned below, it
is useful to consider the benefits due to reductions in the target pollutant relative to the costs, and
whether alternative regulatory designs can achieve reductions in the targeted pollutants and/or
the other affected pollutants more cost effectively. The EPA believes that this may be an

appropriate way to evaluate this and future regulatory actions, and presents this information as
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part of its decision-making process.”®> Therefore, in Tables 1 and 2 we present a comparison of
the forgone benefits from the targeted pollutant — CO2 — (the costs of this proposed rule) with the
avoided compliance cost (the benefits of this proposed rule).**

Regulating pollutants jointly can promote a more efficient outcome in pollution control
management. However, in practice regulations are promulgated sequentially and therefore, the
benefit-cost analyses supporting those regulations are also performed sequentially. The potential
for interaction between regulations suggests that their sequencing may affect the realized
efficiency of their design and the estimated net benefits for each regulation. To note, when
considering whether a regulatory action is a potential welfare improvement it is necessary to
consider all impacts of the action. The EPA requests comment on the extent that the EPA should
rely on consideration of the benefits due to reductions in the target pollutant relative to the costs
in the decision-making process.

Table 1 - Avoided Compliance Costs, Forgone Domestic Climate Benefits, Forgone
Demand-Side Energy Efficiency Benefits, and Net Benefits of Repeal Associated with
Targeted Pollutant (billions of 20115%)

Forgone

. Avoided Forgon.e Demand-Side Net .Beneﬁt's
Discount . Domestic Associated with
Year Compliance . Energy
Rate Climate . . Targeted
Costs . Efficiency
Benefits , Pollutant
Benefits
Rate-Based
2020 3% $3.7 $0.4 $1.2 $2.1

2 Cf. Transcript of Oral Argument at 64:1-6, Michigan v. EPA, 135 Sup. Ct. 2699 (2015) (No.
14-46) (statement of Roberts, C.J.) (“[1]t’s a good thing if your regulation also benefits in other
ways. But when it’s such a disproportion, you begin to wonder whether it’s an illegitimate way
of avoiding the different—quite different limitations on EPA that apply in the criteria
program.”).

24 Excluded from this comparison are the forgone benefits from the SO2 and NOx emission
reductions that were also projected to accompany the CO2 reductions. However, had those SO2
and NOx reductions been achieved through other means, then they would have been represented
in the baseline for this proposed repeal (as well as for the 2015 Final CPP), which would have

affected the estimated costs and benefits of controlling CO2 emissions alone.
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7% $4.2 $0.1 $1.2 $2.9
2025 3% $10.2 $1.4 $9.2 ($0.4)
7% $14.1 $0.2 $9.2 $4.7
2030 3% $27.2 $2.7 $18.8 $5.7
7% $33.3 $0.5 $18.8 $14.0
Mass-Based
3% $2.6 $0.4 $1.2 $1.0
2020 7% $3 1 $0.1 $12 $1.8
2025 3% $13.0 $1.6 $10.0 $14
7% $16.9 $0.3 $10.0 $6.6
2030 3% $24.5 $2.7 $193 $2.5
7% $30.6 $0.5 $193 $10.8

Note: Estimates are rounded to one decimal point and may not sum due to independent rounding.

Table 2 - Avoided Compliance Costs, Forgone Domestic Climate Benefits, and Net Benefits
of Repeal Associated with Targeted Pollutant, based on the 2017 Annual Energy Outlook
(billions of 20115)

Forgone Net Benefits
Year Discount Avoided Domestic Associated with
Rate Compliance Costs Climate Targeted
Benefits Pollutant
3% $0.1 ($0.4)
2020 7% (30.3) 50.0 (30.3)
3% $1.3 $13.2
2025 7% B14.5 $0.2 $14.3
3% $2.5 $11.9
2030 14.4
7% 5 $0.4 $14.0

Note: Estimates are rounded to one decimal point and may not sum due to independent rounding.

We also present the full suite of avoided compliance cost, forgone benefit, and net benefit
results discussed in the RIA in Tables 3 through 5. Table 3 presents results for the rate-based
illustrative plan scenario from the 2015 CPP RIA. Table 4 presents results for the mass-based
illustrative plan scenario from the 2015 CPP RIA. Table 5 presents results based upon the EPA’s
analysis of the AEO2017 Reference Case (CPP) and the AEO2017 No CPP Case. The tables
report two estimates of forgone benefits. One value represents the sum of the forgone COz,

energy efficiency, PMzs co-benefits calculated using the Krewski ez al. (2009) risk coefficient
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and ozone co-benefits calculated using the Bell ef al. (2004) risk coefficient. The other value
represents the sum of the forgone COz, energy efficiency, PMazs co-benefits calculated using the
Lepeule ef al. (2012) risk coefficient and ozone co-benefits calculated using the Levy ef al.
(2005) risk coefficient. Note again that, due to different accounting frameworks, benefits and
costs presented in the EPA 2015 CPP RIA-based Tables 1 and 2 are not directly comparable to
the AEO2017-based benefits and costs presented in Table 3.

Table 3 - Monetized Forgone Benefits, Avoided Compliance Costs, and Net Benefits based
on Rate-Based Approach from 2015 CPP RIA (billions of 2011%)

Cost of Repeal: Net Benefits
Benefit of Forgone Benefits of Repeal
Year Discount Rate Repeal: g p
Avoided Costs A B A B

Forgone Health Co-Benefits (Full Range of Ambient PM;.s Concentrations)

2000 3% $3.7 $2.3 $3.4 $0.3 $1.4
7% $4.2 $1.9 $3.0 $12 $2.3
3% $10.2 $18.0 $28.4 ($18.1) (87.8)
2023 7% $14.1 $16.2 $25.6 ($11.5)  (82.0)
2030 3% $27.2 $35.8 $55.5 ($28.3) ($8.6)
7% $33.3 $32.2 $50.2 ($16.9) $1.1
Forgone Health Co-Benefits (PMz.5 Benefits Fall to Zero Below LML)
2020 3% $3.7 $22 $2.8 $0.9 $1.5
7% $4.2 $1.9 $2.4 $1.8 $2.3
2005 3% $10.2 $17.5 $20.7 ($10.5)  (87.3)
7% $14.1 $15.7 $18.7 ($4.6) ($1.6)
2030 3% $27.2 $34.8 $40.7 ($13.5) (87.6)
7% $33.3 $313 $36.9 ($3.6) $2.0
Forgone Health Co-Benefits (PM;.s Benefits Fall to Zero Below NAAQS)
3% $3.7 $1.7 $2.1 $1.5 $2.0
2020 7% $4.2 $1.4 $1.8 $2.4 $2.8
2025 3% $10.2 $11.4 $133 ($3.1) ($1.1)

This document is a prepublication version, signed by EPA Administrator, E. Scott Pruitt on 10/10/2017. We have
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7% $14.1 $10.2 $12.1 $2.1 $4.0

3% $27.2 $23.0 $26.5 $0.7 $4.2
2030

7% $33.3 $20.7 $24.1 $9.2 $12.7

Note: Estimates are rounded to one decimal point and may not sum due to independent rounding.
Forgone benefits include forgone climate, energy efficiency, and air quality benefits. Estimate A
is based upon the sum of the forgone COz, energy efficiency, PMzs co-benefits calculated using
the Krewski et al. (2009) risk coefficient and ozone co-benefits calculated using the Bell et al.
(2004) risk coefficient. Estimate B is based on the sum of the forgone COz, energy efficiency,
PM2s co-benefits calculated using the Lepeule et al. (2012) risk coefficient and ozone co-
benefits calculated using the Levy et al. (2005) risk coefficient.

Table 4 - Monetized Forgone Benefits, Avoided Compliance Costs, and Net Benefits based
on Mass-Based Approach from 2015 CPP RIA (billions of 201185)

Cost of Repeal: Net Benefits
Benefit of Forgone Benefits of Repeal
Year Discount Rate Repeal: g p
Avoided Costs A B A B

Forgone Health Co-Benefits (Full Range of Ambient PM:.s Concentrations)

2020 3% $2.6 $3.6 $6.4 ($3.8) ($1.0)
7% $3.1 $3.1 $5.6 ($2.5) $0.0
5005 3% $13.0 $18.7 $28.8 (315.8)  (85.7)
7% $16.9 $16.7 $26.0 ($9.1) $0.2
2030 3% $24.5 $33.8 $50.1 ($25.7)  (89.3)
7% $30.6 $30.4 $45.5 ($14.8) $0.2
Forgone Health Co-Benefits (PMz.5 Benefits Fall to Zero Below LML)
2020 3% $2.6 $3.5 $4.4 ($1.8) ($0.9)
7% $3.1 $2.9 $3.8 ($0.7) $0.2
2005 3% $13.0 $18.2 $21.6 ($8.5) ($5.2)
7% $16.9 $163 $19.5 (82.5) $0.7
2030 3% $24.5 $32.9 $38.1 ($13.7)  ($8.4)
7% $30.6 $29.7 $34.7 ($4.0) $0.9
Forgone Health Co-Benefits (PMz.5 Benefits Fall to Zero Below NAAQS)
2020 3% $2.6 $1.8 $2.4 $0.2 $0.8
7% $3.1 $1.5 $2.0 $1.1 $1.7
2025 3% $13.0 $12.4 $14.6 ($1.6) $0.6
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7% $16.9 $11.1 $13.2 $3.7 $5.9

3% $24.5 $23.3 $26.6 ($2.1)  $1.2
2030

7% $30.6 $21.0 $24.2 $6.4 $9.6

Note: Estimates are rounded to one decimal point and may not sum due to independent rounding.
Forgone benefits include forgone climate, energy efficiency, and air quality benefits. Estimate A
is based upon the sum of the forgone COz, energy efficiency, PMzs co-benefits calculated using
the Krewski ef al. (2009) risk coefficient and ozone co-benefits calculated using the Bell e al.
(2004) risk coefficient. Estimate B is based on the sum of the forgone COz, energy efficiency,
PM2s co-benefits calculated using the Lepeule er al. (2012) risk coefticient and ozone co-
benefits calculated using the Levy ef al. (2005) risk coefficient.

Table 5 - Monetized Forgone Benefits, Avoided Compliance Costs, and Net Benefits, based
on EPA Analysis of AEO2017 (billions of 20115%)

Cost of Repeal: Net Benefit
Benefit of Forgone Benefits Of Repeal
Year Discount Rate Repeal: g p
Avoided Costs A B A B

Forgone Health Co-Benefits (Full Range of Ambient PMz.s Concentrations)

3% ($0.5) (30.2) ($0.2) $0.1
2020 ($0.3)

7% ($0.5) (30.2) ($0.1) $0.1

3% $9.0 $19.6 ($5.0) $5.5
2025 $14.5

7% $7.2 $16.9 ($2.3) $7.3

3% $20.6 $44.9 ($30.6)  (86.3)
2030 $14.4

7% $16.8 $39.0 ($24.6) (82.5)

Forgone Health Co-Benefits (PMz.s Benefits Fall to Zero Below LML)

3% $0.2 $0.1 $0.2 $0.2
2020 ’ (50.3) (30.2) (30.1) (80.2)  (30.2)

7% (30.2) ($0.2) (80.2) (50.1)

3% $8.4 $11.5 $3.1 $6.1
2025 $14.5

7% $6.7 $9.6 $5.0 $7.8

3% $193 $25.8 ($11.4) (%4.9)
2030 $14.4

7% $15.6 $21.7 (87.3) ($1.3)

Forgone Health Co-Benefits (PM».s Benefits Fall to Zero Below NAAQS)

3% $0.1 $0.2 ($0.5) (50.5)
2020 ($0.3)

7% $0.0 $0.1 (30.5) (50.4)
2025 3% $14.5 $2.0 $3.6 $10.9 $12.6
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7% $0.9 $2.5 $12.0 $13.7

3% $4.0 $7.3 $7.1 $10.4
2030 $14.4

7% $1.8 $5.0 $9.4 $12.6

Note: Estimates are rounded to one decimal point and may not sum due to independent rounding.
Forgone benefits include forgone climate and air quality benefits. Estimate A is based upon the
sum of the forgone COz, energy efficiency, PMz s co-benefits calculated using the Krewski et al.
(2009) risk coefficient and ozone co-benefits calculated using the Bell et al. (2004) risk
coefficient. Estimate B is based on the sum of the forgone COz, energy efficiency, PMzs co-
benefits calculated using the Lepeule ef al. (2012) risk coefficient and ozone co-benefits
calculated using the Levy et al. (2005) risk coefficient.

In evaluating the impacts of the proposed action, the RIA discusses a number of
uncertainties. The RIA quantitatively examines uncertainties in the approaches that states and
affected EGUs may have taken under the final CPP to accomplish state emission performance
goals, in estimates of the avoided compliance costs, and in estimates of forgone climate, energy
efficiency, and air quality benefits. Other types of uncertainties are acknowledged but remain
unquantified. In addition, the EPA plans to perform updated modeling and analysis of avoided
compliance costs, forgone benefits, and other impacts, which will be made available for public
comment before any action that relates to the CPP is finalized. To the extent feasible, the EPA
intends to perform full-scale gridded photochemical air quality modeling to support the air
quality benefits assessment informing subsequent regulatory analyses of CPP-related actions.
Such model predictions would supply the data needed to: (1) quantify the PMzs and ozone-
related impacts of the policy case; (2) perform the full suite of sensitivity analyses summarized
above, particularly the concentration cut-point assessment. The EPA further commits to
characterizing the uncertainty associated with applying benefit-per-ton estimates by comparing
the EPA’s approach with other reduced-form techniques found in the literature. All of these
analyses will be available for peer review consistent with the requirements of OMB’s

Information Quality Bulletin for Peer Review within 6 months.
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B. Executive Order 13771: Reducing Regulation and Controlling Regulatory Costs

This proposed rule is expected to be an EO 13771 deregulatory action. Details on the

estimated cost savings of this proposed rule can be found in the rule’s RIA.
C. Paperwork Reduction Act (PRA)

This proposed rule does not impose an information collection burden under the PRA.
D. Regulatory Flexibility Act (RFA)

I certify that this action will not have a significant economic impact on a substantial
number of small entities under the RFA. Emission guidelines established under CAA section
111(d) do not impose any requirements on regulated entities and, thus, will not have a significant
economic impact upon a substantial number of small entities. After emission guidelines are
promulgated, states establish emission standards on existing sources, and it is those requirements
that could potentially impact small entities. This proposed action will not impose any
requirements on small entities. As a result, this action will not have a significant economic
impact on a substantial number of small entities under the RFA.

Our analysis in the accompanying RIA is consistent with the analysis of the analogous
situation arising when the EPA establishes NAAQS, which do not impose any requirements on
regulated entities. As with the description in the RIA, any impact of a NAAQS on small entities
would only arise when states take subsequent action to maintain and/or achieve the NAAQS
through their state implementation plans. See American Trucking Assoc. v. EPA, 175 F.3d 1029,
1043-45 (D.C. Cir. 1999) (NAAQS do not have significant impacts upon small entities because
NAAQS themselves impose no regulations upon small entities).

E. Unfunded Mandates Reform Act (UMRA)

This document is a prepublication version, signed by EPA Administrator, E. Scott Pruitt on 10/10/2017. We have
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This proposed action does not contain an unfunded mandate of $100 million or more as
described in UMRA, 2 U.S.C. 1531-1538, and does not significantly or uniquely affect small
governments. This action imposes no enforceable duty on any state, local, or tribal governments
or the private sector.

F. Executive Order 13132: Federalism

The EPA proposes to conclude that the CPP would have negative federalism implications
and that this proposed repeal of the CPP would restore the status quo ante. The EPA has
concluded that this proposed action does not have negative federalism implications. It will not
have substantial negative direct effects on the states, on the relationship between the national
government and the states, or on the distribution of power and responsibilities among the various
levels of government.

G. Executive Order 13175: Consultation and Coordination with Indian Tribal Governments

This action does not have tribal implications as specified in Executive Order 13175. It
will not have substantial direct effects on tribal governments, on the relationship between the
federal government and Indian tribes, or on the distribution of power and responsibilities
between the federal government and Indian tribes, as specified in Executive Order 13175. Thus,
Executive Order 13175 does not apply to the action.

Consistent with the EPA Policy on Consultation and Coordination with Indian Tribes, the
EPA will engage in consultation with tribal officials during the development of this action.

H. Executive Order 13045: Protection of Children from Environmental Risks and Health Risks

This action 1s subject to Executive Order 13045 because it is an economically significant
regulatory action as defined by Executive Order 12866. The CPP was anticipated to lower

ambient concentrations of PMz.s and ozone, and some of the benefits of reducing these pollutants
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would have accrued to children. As previously discussed above in Section IV.A on Executive
Order 12866, and as discussed in detail in the RIA that accompanies this document of proposed
rulemaking, recent changes in the electric power sector have affected expectations about the
impact of the CPP since its supporting analysis was conducted in 2015. In general, current
expectations about future emissions of pollution from the electric power sector without the CPP
are lower than they were at the time the final CPP was analyzed. Relative to its 2015 projections
of the electric power sector, the EIA’s 2017 AEO forecasts lower future emissions levels without
the CPP. Specifically, in AEO2017, the forecast for NOx emissions from the electric power
sector in 2030 without the CPP is approximately 27 percent lower than the analogous forecast in
AEQO2015. The forecast for SO2 emissions from the electric power sector in 2030 is 6 percent
lower in AEO2017 than in AEO2015. Therefore, there is significant uncertainty as to the current
applicability of results from the 2015 CPP analysis, including the assessment human health

benefits.

Furthermore, the proposed action does not affect the level of public health and
environmental protection already being provided by existing NAAQS and other mechanisms in
the CAA. This proposed action does not affect applicable local, state, or federal permitting or air
quality management programs that will continue to address areas with degraded air quality and
maintain the air quality in areas meeting current standards. Areas that need to reduce criteria air
pollution to meet the NAAQS will still need to rely on control strategies to reduce emissions. To
the extent that states use other mechanisms in order to comply with the NAAQS, and still
achieve the criteria pollution reductions that would have occurred under the CPP, this proposed
rescission will not have a disproportionate adverse effect on children’s health.

This document is a prepublication version, signed by EPA Administrator, E. Scott Pruitt on 10/10/2017. We have
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1. Executive Order 13211: Actions Concerning Regulations that Significantly Affect Energy
Supply Distribution or Use

This action, which is a significant regulatory action under Executive Order 12866, is
likely to have a significant effect on the supply, distribution, or use of energy. In the RIA for the
CPP, we estimated that the CPP could have a 1- to 2-percent impact on retail electricity prices on
average across the U.S. in 2025 and a 22- to 23-percent reduction in coal-fired electricity
generation. The EPA also estimated that the utility power sector delivered natural gas prices
would increase by up to 2.5 percent in 2030. A repeal of the CPP would directionally have the
opposite impact.

The energy impacts the EPA estimates from the proposed rule may be under- or over-
estimates of the true energy impacts associated with the proposed repeal of the CPP. Some states
are likely to pursue emissions reduction strategies independent of EPA action. Additionally, the
compliance cost estimates were based upon information available in 2015, so important
economic and technical factors that influence the estimates may have changed since 2015 or may
change in the future. However, these estimates of energy impacts associated with the proposed
action are currently the best estimates available.

J. National Technology Transfer and Advancement Act (NTTAA)

This rulemaking does not involve technical standards.

K. Executive Order 12898: Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority
Populations and Low-Income Populations

The EPA believes that this proposed action is unlikely to have disproportionately high

and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority populations, low-income

populations and/or indigenous peoples as specified in Executive Order 12898 (59 FR 7629,
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February 16, 1994). The CPP anticipated reductions in CO2 emissions, as well as lower
concentrations of PMz.s and ozone due to changes in EGU emissions. The EPA conducted a
proximity analysis for the CPP and identified that low-income and minority communities located
in proximity to EGUs may have experienced an improvement in air quality as a result of the
emissions reductions. However, the EPA did not address the potential distribution of compliance
costs associated with the CPP.

The RIA that accompanies this document of proposed rulemaking discusses how the
potential impacts of this proposed action might be distributed across the population, as the
impacts are not expected to be experienced uniformly by different individuals, communities, or
industry sectors.

The distribution of avoided compliance costs associated with this action depends on how
the degree to which costs would have been passed through to consumers. As discussed in the
RIA, this proposal is expected to result in lower electricity prices. Low-income households
typically spend a greater share of their household income on energy, and to the extent that this
action reduces energy costs, those low-income households will experience lower energy bills.
This result is complicated by expectations regarding how energy efficiency programs may have
been adopted under the CPP. However, the EPA does not know how states would have
implemented those programs and, therefore, the impact of those program on low-income
households. The overall distribution of the avoided compliance costs associated with this action
is uncertain, but may result in lower household energy bills for low-income households.

With respect to the forgone benefits associated with this action, the EPA conducted a
proximity analysis for the CPP which showed a higher percentage of low-income and minority

households living in proximity to EGUs that may have reduced emissions under the CPP. These
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communities may experience forgone benefits as a result of this action. However, any changes
in ambient air quality depends on stack height, atmospheric conditions, and dispersion patterns.
Therefore, the distribution of forgone benefits is highly uncertain. Also expected, as a result of
the CPP, were shifts in regional workforces, particularly in the electricity, coal, and natural gas
sectors. While employment effects are not experienced uniformly across the population and may
be offset by new opportunities in different sectors, localized impacts could have adversely
affected individuals and their communities. Workers losing jobs in regions or occupations with
weak labor markets would have been most vulnerable. With limited re-employment
opportunities, or if new employment offered lower earnings, then unemployed workers could
face extended periods without work, or permanently reduced future earnings. In addition, past
research has suggested that involuntary job loss may increase risks to health, of substance abuse,
and even of mortality. These adverse impacts may be avoided with the proposed repeal of the

CPP.
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V. Statutory Authority

The statutory authority for this action is provided by sections 111, 301, 302, and
307(d)(1)(V) of the CAA, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 7411, 7601, 7602, 7607(d)(1)(V)). This

action is also subject to section 307(d) of the CAA (42 U.S.C. § 7607(d)).

Dated:

E. Scott Pruitt,
Administrator.
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Message

From: Lisa Levine [LLevine@eba-net.org]

Sent: 10/11/2017 3:47:14 PM

To: Schneider, Jonathan [jonathan.schneider@stinson.com]; 'andrew.mckeon@rggi.org' [andrew.mckeon@rggi.org];
'PCBailey@ Ex. 6 i 'Chupka, Marc' [Marc.Chupka@brattle.com]; 'blongstreth@nrdc.org'

[blongstreth@nrdc.org]; Fotouhi, David [fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
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

CC: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com' [stuart.caplan@troutman.com]; 'dlyster@velaw.com' [dlyster@velaw.com];
“tmiller@willkie.com' [tmiller@willkie.com]; 'Norman Pedersen' [npedersen@hanmor.com]
Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Thanks Jon. My correct emalil is: Hevine@eba-net.org

Please forward your presentations.

From: Schneider, Jonathan [mailto:jonathan.schneider@stinson.com]

Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 10:44 AM

To: 'andrew.mckeon@rggi.org' <andrew.mckeon@rggi.org>; 'PCBailey@:¢ Ex. 6 i 'Chupka, Marc'
<Marc.Chupka@brattle.com>; ‘blongstreth@nrdc.org’ <blongstreth@nrdc.org>; 'Fotouhi, David'
<Fotouhi.David@epa.gov>; 'Veney, Carla' <Veney.Carla@epa.gov>; 'Lovell, Will (William)' <lovell.william@epa.gov>;
‘Irving, Verna' <lrving.Verna@epa.gov>; 'Kime, Robin' <Kime.Robin@epa.gov>

Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com’ <stuart.caplan@troutman.com>; ‘dlyster @velaw.com' <dlyster@velaw.com>;
tmiller@willkie.com' <tmiller@willkie.com>; 'Norman Pedersen' <npedersen@hanmor.com>; Lisa Levine
<llevine@eba-net.org>

Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Hi folks — In order to give yvou a chance to react, | was thinking of this order for the speakers :

¢ D, Foutouhi

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

To: 'andrew.mckeon@rggi.org’; 'PCBailey@: Ex. s 'Chupka, Marc'; 'blongstreth@nrdc.org’; 'Fotouhi, David’; 'Veney,
Carla’; 'Lovell, Will (William)'; 'Irving, Verna'; 'Kime, Robin’
Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com’; 'dlyster@velaw.com’; 'tmiller@willkie.com'; 'Norman Pedersen'; 'Lisa Levine'

Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Hi folks — lust a reminder about today's call at 11:00, ET.  Please also remember to forward as soon as you can any
handouts to Exec. Dir, Lisa Levine, copied here. Llisa.levine@eba-net.org.

Thanks!

lon

From: Schneider, Jonathan
Sent: Friday, October 06, 2017 2:42 PM

Lovell, Will (William); Irving, Verna; Kime, Robin

Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com’; divster@velaw.com; tmiller@willkie.com; Norman Pedersen; Lisa Levine
Subject: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

When: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 11:00 AM-11:30 AM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).

Where: Dial-in Number: | Ex. 6 ode: Ex. 6
Dial-in Number:i Ex. 6
Conference Code: i Ex. 6

From: Schneider, Jonathan
Sent: Friday, October 06, 2017 2:39 PM

Carla'; 'Lovell, Will (William)'; 'Irving, Verna'; 'Kime, Robin'
Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com'; 'dlyster@velaw.com’; 'tmiller@willkie.com'; 'Norman Pedersen’; 'Lisa Levine'
Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Hi folks — 1t {ooks as though next Weadnesday, 10711, at 1100 will work for most of us. 1 can cateh up with others as
neaded. 'l send a meesting notice with a dial-in number in a few minutes.

Thanks!
Jon

From: Schneider, Jonathan

Sent: Thursday, October 05, 2017 5:20 PM

To: 'andrew.mckeon@rggi.org'; 'PCBailey@i "Ex. ¢~ iChupka, Marc'; 'blongstreth@nrdc.org'; Fotouhi, David; Veney,
Carla; Lovell, Will (William); Irving, Verna; 'Kime, Robin'

Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com'; 'dlyster@velaw.com’; tmiller@willkie.com; Norman Pedersen; Lisa Levine

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

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 1 ED_002061_00122210-00002



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

Ti Ex. 6 M: 3 Ex. 6 { F: 202.572.9967

jonathan.schneider@stinson.com | www.stinson.com

This communication {(including any attachments) is from a law firm and may contain confidential and/or privileged
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
Sent: 10/11/2017 3:07:41 PM
To: ‘andrew.mckeon@rggi.org' [andrew.mckeon@rggi.org]; 'PCBaiIey@c: Ex. 6 i'Chupka, Marc'

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
[LLevine@eba-net.org]

Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Dialing in again. Please hold on
i

From: Schneider, Jonathan
Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 10:44 AM

Carla'; 'Lovell, Will (William)'; 'Irving, Verna'; 'Kime, Robin'
Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com'; 'dlyster@velaw.com’; 'tmiller@willkie.com'; 'Norman Pedersen'; 'Lisa Levine'
Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Hi folks — In order to give you a chance to react, | was thinking of this order for the speakers :

¢ D, Foutpuhi
s P Baily

» B, Longstreth
¢ A MoKeon

e M. Chupka

And, as | mentioned earlier, we will inwite you {no obligation) to speak to the DOE NOPR.
Thanks!

Jon

From: Schneider, Jonathan
Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 9:51 AM

Carla’; 'Lovell, Will (William)'; 'Irving, Verna'; 'Kime, Robin'
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Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com'; 'dlyster@velaw.com’; 'tmiller@willkie.com'; 'Norman Pedersen’'; 'Lisa Levine'
Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Hi folks — lust a reminder about today's call at 11:00, £7.  Please also remember to forward as soon as you can any
handouts to Exec. Dir, Lisa Levine, copied here. Lisa.levine@eba-net.org.

Thanks!

Jon

From: Schneider, Jonathan

Sent: Friday, October 06, 2017 2:42 PM

To: andrew.mckeon@rggi.org; PCBailey€ Ex.6 :Chupka, Marc; blongstreth@nrdc.org; Fotouhi, David; Veney, Carla;
Lovell, Will (William); Irving, Verna; Kime, Robin

Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com’; dlyster@velaw.com; tmiller@willkie.com; Norman Pedersen; Lisa Levine

Subject: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

When: Wednesday, October 11, 2017 11:00 AM-11:30 AM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).

Where: Dial-in Numberi  Ex.6  Code:!  Ex. 6

Dial-in Number:! Ex. 6

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

Hi folks — it looks as though next Wednesday, 10/11, at 11:00 will work for most of us. | can cateh up with others as
needed. 'l send a meeting notice with a dial-in number in a few minutes.

Thanks!
Jon

From: Schneider, Jonathan
Sent: Thursday, October 05, 2017 5:20 PM

Carla; Lovell, Will (William); Irving, Verna; 'Kime, Robin'
Cc: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com'; 'dlyster@velaw.com'; tmiller@willkie.com; Norman Pedersen; Lisa Levine
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
limit the call to 2 hour.

Poll: https://doodle.com/poll/v23482mp9xvsn995

Thanks again!

Jon

Jonathan D. Schneider | Partner | Stinson Leonard Street LLP
1775 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Suite 800 | Washington, DC 20006-4605

T TEx. e 1iM:l TEx.6 {F:202.572.9967
jonathan.schneider@stinson.com | www.stinson.com
Legal Administrative Assistant: Yvette Trammell i Ex.6 ! yvette.trammell@stinson.com

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
Sent: 10/6/2017 6:38:59 PM
To: andrew.mckeon@rggi.org; PCBailey@:_Ex.6_ .Chupka, Marc [Marc.Chupka@brattle.com]; blongstreth@nrdc.org;

Fotouhi, David [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=febaf0d56aab43f8a9174b18218c1182-Fotouhi, Da]; Veney, Carla
[/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=c354b58hf2b1464d8afac7bbd2a7a88c-CVeney]; Lovell, Will {(William)
[/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=3b150bb6ade640f68d744fadch83a73e-Lovell, Wil; Irving, Verna
[/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9e9c4a3b2bidb46df88c24bf66chbafec-Virving]; Kime, Robin
[/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=7ef7b76087a6475b80fc984ac2dd4497-RKime]

CC: 'stuart.caplan@troutman.com’ [stuart.caplan@troutman.com]; dlyster@velaw.com; tmiller@willkie.com; Norman
Pedersen [npedersen@hanmor.com]; Lisa Levine [LLevine@eba-net.org]
Subject: RE: Energy Bar Association . Panel - October 17, 9:00 - 10:30

Hi folks — it looks as though next Wednesday, 10711, at 11:00 will work for most of us. | can catch up with others as
needed. 'l send a meeting notice with a disl-in number in 3 few minutes.

Thanks!

Jon

Jonathan D. Schneider | Partner | Stinson Leonard Street LLP
1775 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Suite 800 | Washington, DC 20006-4605

T TTTECE T M Ex s 3 F:202.572.9967
jonathan.schneider @stinson.com | www.stinson.com
Legal Administrative Assistant: Yvette Trammell {i  Ex.6 ! yvette.trammell@stinson.com

This communication {including any attachments) is from a law firm and may contain confidential and/or privileged information. If it
has been sent to you in error, please contact the sender for instructions concerning return or destruction, and do not use or disclose
the contents to others.

From: Schneider, Jonathan
Sent: Thursday, October 05, 2017 5:20 PM

To: 'andrew.mckeon@rggi.org'; 'PCBailey@!__Ex.6__i'Chupka, Marc'; 'blongstreth@nrdc.org'; Fotouhi, David; Veney,

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

From: Lovell, Will (William) [/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=3B150BB6ADE640F68D744FADCB83A73E-LOVELL, WIL]

Sent: 10/17/2017 10:42:42 PM

To: lorine.card@mosaicco.com

CC: Kime, Robin [fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=7ef7b76087a6475b80fc984ac2dd4497-RKime]

Subject: Meeting w/EPA, 10/24

Good evening, Lorine,

| am gathering information ahead of your group’s meeting with EPA next week. Would you mind providing a list of
attendees from your group as well as any read-ahead materials you can provide us?

Thanks,

Will Lovell

Policy Assistant, Office of Policy

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(202) 564-5713

Lovell Williamepa gov
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